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Letter of Transmittal

All Shareholders of ACI Formulations Limited (ACI FL)
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSCF)
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE)

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) &

Other stakeholders of ACI Formulations Limited (ACI FL)

Dear Concern,

ACI Formulations Limited

ACI Centre

245, Tejgaon Industrial Area
Dhaka 1208, Bangladesh

PO Box 7218

Telephone (88-02) 887 0982-7, 887 8603
Fax (88-02) 8870988, 887 8626
Email: infofl@aci-bd.com

Web: www.aci-bd.com

Date
7 December 2020

Re: Annual Report of ACI Formulations Limited (ACI FL) for the year ended 30 June 2020.

We are pleased to enclose a copy of ACI FL's Annual Report which includes amongst others, Directors’ Report and
the Audited Financial Statements comprising of statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June

2020 along with notes thereto of ACI FL for your kind information and record.

General review of this report, unless explained otherwise, is based on the financials of the ACI FL.

With best regards,

Yours truly,

4

Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Company Secretary

Factory : Gazaria, Voual Rajabari, Sreepur, Gazipur, Bangladesh. Tel : 0682555135
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Corporate Information

Company Profile

Basic Information

ACI Formulations Limited
29 October 1995
C-29594 (882)/95

Public Limited

1,113

Full Name
Incorporation Date
Registration No
Company Type
Number of Employees Year End

Statutory Position

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary
Head of Risk Management & Internal Audit

Mr. Pradip Kar Chowdhury
Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Mr. Amitava Saha

Auditors
Statutory Auditor Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountants

Governance Compliance Auditor ~ Al-Mugtadir Associates, Chartered Secretaries

Advisors
Legal Advisor
Advisor, Regulatory Affairs

Barrister Nihad Kabir
Mr. M. Sekander Al

Contact Address
Registered Office

ACI Centre, 245, Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208
Phone # (8802) 8878603

Fax  # (8802) 8878619, 8878626

Email # info@aci-bd.com

Web  # www.aci-bd.com/acifl/

9 Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000

Phone # (8802) 9556254

Rajabari, Sreepur, Gazipur

Phone # (8802) 0682555135

Investors Relation’s Office

Factory Location

Principal Bankers
= Standard Chartered Bank
= The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited =
= Commercial Bank of Ceylon Plc .

BRAC Bank Limited
The City Bank Limited
Prime Bank Limited

Subsidiary Company
= Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd

Authorized Capital (Taka)
Issued & Paid Capital (Taka)
Number of Shares

Face Value (Taka)

Board Audit Committee

50,00,00,000
45,00,00,000
45,000,000
10

30 June

Board of Directors

Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla
Chairman

Ms. Shusmita Anis

Managing Director

Mrs. Najma Dowla

Director

Dr. Arif Dowla

Director

Dr. A.K.M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey
Director

Mr. Golam Mainuddin
Independent Director

Mr. Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury
Independent Director

Mr. Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury
Chairman

Dr. A.K.M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey
Member

Mrs. Najma Dowla

Member

Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Secretary

Mr. Golam Mainuddin
Chairman

Mr. Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury
Member

Mrs. Najma Dowla

Member

Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Secretary

ACI Formulations in Brief

ACI Formulations Limited (ACI FL) was established as the subsidiary of Advanced Chemical Industries (ACI)
Limited in 1995. The Company obtained listing with Dhaka Stock Exchange in 2009.

ACI FLl's Crop Care & Public Health (CC&PH) business is one of the most renowned names and leading agro
chemical manufacturer and supplier of Bangladesh. Since inception the business is contributing to the growth of
country's agriculture sector and marked a huge footprint in the industry by showing quality and innovation. ACI
Crop Care helps farmers protecting their crops from diseases, insects and weeds and thereby increases farm
production through appropriate use of pesticides. CC&PH is providing a complete range of cost effective solution
for the farmers through formulating and marketing insecticides, herbicides, fungicides and miticides etc.
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Board of Directors’ Profile

Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla
Chairman

Mr. Golam Mainuddin
Independent Director
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Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla, the Chairman of ACI Group, is one of the most successful
personalities in Bangladesh business circle. Mr. Dowla has maintained a high
profile, and has provided leadership to the business community in different
capacities. Mr. Dowla served in the British Oxygen Group of UK in Pakistan,
Bangladesh and Kenya for 27 years, including 12 years as Managing Director of
Bangladesh Oxygen Ltd. In 1987, he became the Group Managing Director of the
three ICl companies in Bangladesh. With experience gathered while working with
two British multi-nationals for over 32 years, Mr. Dowla has continued to maintain
the multinational culture and management style in ACI, with especial emphasis
on quality, productivity and customer services. He was the President of
Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce & Industries, Dhaka in 1977, 1978, 1995
and 2010. Mr. Dowla has considerable contribution in the field of Industrial
Relations of the country. He was elected President of Bangladesh Employers'
Federation for four terms in 1975-1976, 1976-1977, 1991-1992, 1992-1993.
Besides, he was the Chairman of Pioneer Insurance Company Limited for three
terms. At present, he is a Director of the Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh. He
has also been re-elected as the President of the Bangladesh Seed Association
(BSA) for three consecutive terms. He is a member of the Board of Trustees of
the Independent University of Bangladesh.

Mr. Golam Mainuddin joined the Board of ACI Formulations Limited in June 2020.
He is as well Director of Advanced Chemical Industries Limited. Mr. Mainuddin
has been the Chairman of British American Tobacco Bangladesh since August
2008. He has been with BAT Bangladesh over 36 years and served in different
management capacity. After obtaining his Masters of Science degree from Dhaka
University, Mr. Mainuddin pursued the first 28 years of his career in the
agro-based industry followed by corporate management over the last 22 years.
He was a Tea Garden Manager at Duncan Brothers from 1969 to 1982, and then
joined BAT Bangladesh to soon become the Head of Leaf in 1985. He was
inducted as Director of BAT in 1986, and was given the responsibility of Deputy
Managing Director in 1996. He was the Vice-President of Metropolitan Chambers
of Commerce and Industries (MCCI), the Vice-President of Bangladesh
Employers' Federation (BEF) and Director of Federation of Bangladesh Chambers
of Commerce and Industries (FBCCI). He was the Independent Director as well
as Chairman of the Audit Committee of Apex Footwear Limited. Besides, he
served as Director of Infrastructure Investment Facilitation Company (IIFC) at
the Ministry of Finance of the Government of Bangladesh. He has been a CIP
(Commercially Important Person) by the Government of Bangladesh since 2010.




Mrs. Najma Dowla joined the Board as Director in 2001. In addition to her role
as a Board member, she also serves as a Member of the Audit Committee, and
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of ACI Formulations Limited.
Currently, she occupies the Directorship position in Advanced Chemical
Industries Limited, ACI Salt Limited, Premiaflex Plastics Limited, Consolidated
Chemicals Limited, ACI Foods Limited, ACI Motors Limited, Stochastic Logic
Limited, ACI HealhCare Limited, ACI Chemicals Limited, ACI Boitech Limited,
ACI Agrolink Limited, ACI Logistics Limited, ACI Edible Oils Limited, Dowla
Agricultural Development Company Limited and ACI Foundation (a non-profit
organization). She completed her Bachelor degree in Arts.

Mrs. Najma Dowla
Director

Dr. Arif Dowla was inducted as Director of the Company in 2003. He is the
Managing Director of the parent company, Advanced Chemical Industries Limited
and functional head of ACI Group. He has significant contribution in the
advancement of Industrial as well as Agricultural sector of the country. His
business strategy and various backward and forward linkages have diversified the
Group business in manifold resulting ACI a largest turnover based conglomerate
in Bangladesh. Dr. Dowla obtained Ph.D in Mathematics from the University of
California, USA. He is a member of the American Mathematical Society and the
Society of Quantitative Analyst, New York, as well. He has been included in the
Forum of Young Global Leader Honorees 2009 by the World Economic Forum. He

Dr. Arif Dowla has been serving as the Honorary Consul of Belgium in Bangladesh since

Director September 2013. Dr. Dowla is the Chairman of Tetley ACI (Bangladesh) Limited,

a Joint-venture between Bangladesh and UK, and Chairman of ACI CO-RO
Bangladesh Limited, a Joint-venture between Bangladesh and Denmark. He is a
Director of Mutual Trust Bank Limited and former Chairman of the Bank
(2012-2014). He was also the Director of Pioneer Insurance Company Limited
from 2002 to 2009. Besides, Dr. Dowla is the Managing Director of ACI Logistics
Limited and Stochastic Logic Limited. He, however, occupies Directorship in ACI
Formulations Limited, ACI Salt Limited, ACI Pure Flour Limited, ACI Motors
Limited, ACI Foods Limited, Premiaflex Plastics Limited, ACI Agrolink Limited.,
ACI HealthCare Limited, ACI Edible Oils Limited, Creative Communication Limited,
Consolidated Chemicals Limited, ACI Chemicals Limited, ACI Boitech Limited,
INFOLYTX Bangladesh Limited, ACI Marine and Riverine Technologies Limited,
Dowla Agricultural Development Company Limited, ACI Godrej Agrovet Private
Limited and ACI Foundation (a non-profit organization).
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Dr. A.K.M. Fareyzul
Haque Ansarey
Director

Mr. Abdul-Muyeed
Chowdhury
Independent Director
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Dr. A.K.M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey a Ph.D holder in Ecology brings with him high
profile management strength for a highly techno-dependent company. His wide
work experience in MNCs like Ciba-Geigy and local corporate like Shetu
Corporation Limited in the field of chemical world gives confidence in realizing the
business potential of the Company. He is one of the promoters of ACI
Formulations Limited and has been discharging his duties and responsibilities as
Director since November 1995. Currently, he acts as the Managing Director &
CEO of ACI Agribusinesses. He has also been appointed as the Managing
Directors of ACI Agrolink Limited, ACI Motors Limited, Premiaflex Plastics Limited
and ACI Marine and Riverine Technologies Limited. He served Advanced Chemical
Industries Limited in the capacity of Executive Director of Agribusinesses and
General Manager & Head of Business Operation, as well. Besides, Dr. Ansarey
occupies the Directorship position in ACI Salt Limited, ACI Godrej Agrovet Private
Limited and ACI Marine and Riverine Technologies Limited.

Mr. Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury joined the Board as Independent Director in
October 2018. He served as an Independent Director of Advanced Chemical
Industries Limited from May 2012 to May 2018. Mr. Chowdhury obtained his
Bachelor of Arts with honors in History and Master of Arts (1st Class) from Dhaka
University. He also attended Certificate of Participation in an acceptable program
of special study in Political Science, Public Administration in the University of
Tennessee, Knoxville. Mr. Chowdhury, a CSP, served as an Adviser to the Care
Taker Government of Bangladesh in 2001 and was in charge of five Ministries. He
was the Executive Director of BRAC from 2000 to 2006. Prior to that, he spent
more than three decades in the civil service of Bangladesh and was the Secretary
to the Government from 1994 to 2000 holding charge of various ministries. He
served as the Chairman of NBR, Managing Director of Biman Bangladesh Airlines
and Executive Director of Jamuna Multipurpose Bridge Authority, President of
National Shooting Federation of Bangladesh, Chairman of SME Foundation and
Vice President of Bangladesh Olympic Association. He was the Chairperson of
BRACNet Limited. Currently, he is serving as the CEO of Tiger Tours Limited.
Besides, he is a Director of MJL Bangladesh Limited, Omera Petroleum Limited,
Omera Fuels Limited, Omera Cylliders Ltd, Summit Alliance Port Limited, PEB
Steel Alliance Limited and Tiger Tours Limited. He is also a Member of the
Governing Body of BRAC University, Sajida Foundation and Bangladesh Youth
Enterprise Advice and Help Center (B'Yeah).



Ms. Shusmita Anis completed her graduation in Fine Arts in Graphics Design from
San Jose, California, USA. She was inducted as Director of ACI Formulations
Limited in 2003 and appointed as the Managing Director of the Company in 2012.
She has also been a Director of Advanced Chemical Industries Limited since 2000
and performing as a Member of the Audit Committee. Besides, she is the Director
of ACI Logistics Limited, ACI Foods Limited, ACI Motors Limited, Premiaflex
Plastics Limited, Creative Communication Limited, Consolidated Chemicals
Limited, ACI Pure Flour Limited, Stochastic Logic Limited, ACI Salt Limited, ACI
Chemicals Limited, Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Limited, Dowla Agricultural

Development Company Limited and ACI Foundation (a non-profit organization).
Ms. Shusmita Anis
Managing Director

Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman joined ACI Formulations Limited as the Company
Secretary in July 2018. Previously, he worked with Heidelberg Cement
Bangladesh Limited, Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited, Square Pharma
and Rangs Properties Limited in various capacities. In the year of 2010 the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh recognized him as a qualified
Chartered Secretary. He completed both LL.B. (Hons.) and LL.M from University
of Dhaka. He earned Post Graduate Diploma in Human Resources Management
(PGDHRM) from Bangladesh Institute of Management (BIM) in 2013. Mr. Rahman
is a Fellow member of Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh.

Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur
Rahman
Company Secretary
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Notice of the 24™ Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of ACI Formulations Limited will be held
on Thursday, 24 December 2020 at 10:00 am. The AGM will be held virtually using digital platform through
the following link: https://tinyurl.com/aciflagm2020

AGENDA

1) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
together with Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2) To declare dividend for the year ended 30 June 2020.
3) To elect/re-elect Directors and to approve the appointment of Directors.
4) To appoint Statutory and Compliance Auditors for the year 2020-2021 and to fix their remunerations.

5) To confirm appointment of Independent Director.

By Order of the Board

4

Dhaka

2 December 2020 Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Company Secretary

Notes

a. The Shareholders whose names appeared in the Members/Depository Register as on the Record Date
i.e. 1 December 2020, will be eligible to attend the virtual AGM and receive the dividend.

b. Members can join the AGM using their Laptop, PC, Mobile or Tab providing their
respective name, 16-digit BOID and No. of Shares. Members can also find the link
easily by scanning the QR Code given.

c. The Shareholders are requested to submit their written option to receive dividend to
the Company’s Share Office on or before 15 December 2020. In case of non-receipt
of such option within the stipulated date, the dividend will be paid off as deemed  To Join with AGM
appropriate by the Company.

d. The Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited at the Share Office of the Company at 9 Motijheel
Commercial Area, Dhaka-1000 at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

e. The Annual Report 2019-2020 will be available in Company’s website, www.aci-bd.com/acifl/
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Financial Calendar

10

November 2019

29

January 2020

9

June 2020
Tuesday

Sunday Wednesday

Quarter One
Adoption of unaudited first
quarter financial dtatements
ended on 30 September 2019.

Quarter Two
Adoption of unaudited second
quarter financial statements
ended on 31 December 2019.

Quarter Three
Adoption of unaudited third
quarter financial statements

ended on 31 March 2020.

2

December 2020

Wednesday

AGM Notice
Notice of 24th Annual
General Meeting

v

December 2020
Monday

Annual Report
Issuance of Annual
Report

1

December 2020
Tuesday

Record Date
Record Date in lieu of
Book Closure.

24

December 2020

Thursday

AGM Day
24th Annual General
Meeting

28

October 2020
Wednesday

Annual
Adoption of audited financial
statements for the year ended
on 30 June 2020

21

January 2021
Thursday

Dividend Payment
Payment of Dividend to the
shareholders whose name would
appear in the register of the
Company on record date.
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Financial Highlights and Analysis

Turnover Contribution by Business Unit

2019-2020 [N | 2018-2019

Business Unit 2019 - 2020 2018 - 2019
W Corp Care & Public Health 76.43% 68.62%
M Mosquito Coil 0.33% 3.33%
M Toilet Cleaner (Vanish) 0.49% 1.16%
M Aerosol 11.57% 13.22%
M Paint 11.18% 13.67%

-

\ Earnings Per Share

(Taka)
5.81

5.23
256 283
2.01 | | I ‘ 2.05

2015 June-16 July2016- July2017- July 2018- July 2019-
(six month) June 2017 June 2018 June 2019 June 2020

Net Sales Income & Profit Before Tax
(Taka in Million)

Shareowners' Equity

(Taka in Million)
2,502
2350 2283 2 202 2472 2400

1,806
2015  June-16 July2016-  July2017- July 2018- July 2019-
(sixmonth) June 2017  June 2018 June 2019 June 2020
I Net Sales Income

| Profit Before Tax 2014 2015 June-16 July2016- July 2017- July 2018- July 2019-
(six month) June 2017 June 2018 June 2019 June 2020 J
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Comparative Statistics

EeriaulErs June 2016 July 16- July 17- July 18- July 19-
(Six Month) June 17 June 18 June 19 June 20

Taka in million

Authorized capital 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00
Issued & paid-up capital 450.00 450.00 450.00 450.00 450.00 450.00 450.00
Current assets 1,811.60 2,594.40 2,719.34 3,296.51 3,994.18 4,010.05 3,563.12
Tangible fixed assets (gross) 1,435.68 1,717.06 1,761.33 1,857.65 1,912.42 2,155.61 2,176.81
Shareowners' equity 1,805.59 2,350.46 2,283.36 2,454.80 2,502.33 2,471.79 2,406.74
Turnover (net) 2,908.11 3,006.49 1,625.48 3,629.43 4,127.46  4,025.29 3,422.45
Gross profit 738.58 800.14 476.94 1,107.81 1,026.50 1,210.67 1,065.17
Profit before tax 259.65 313.11 126.64 356.73 163.30 180.26 125.57
Profit after tax 187.62 235.14 90.40 261.44 115.03 127.52 92.45
Dividend 135.00 157.50 - 157.50 157.50 157.50 90.00
Current ratio (times) 1.50 1.35 1.29 1.29 1.24 1.17 1.17
Quick ratio (times) 0.94 0.88 0.82 0.75 0.74 0.69 0.76
Return on equity (%) 10.00 10.00 *7.92 10.65 4.60 5.16 3.84
Inventory turnover (times) 3.21 2.46 *2.31 1.82 1.93 1.73 1.85
Debtors turnover (times) 3.48 2.19 *2.56 2.51 2.78 2.19 2.02
Fixed assets turnover (times) 2.34 1.72 *1.87 2.02 2.30 2.07 1.80
Net asset per share (Taka) 40.12 52.23 50.74 54.55 55.59 54.93 53.48
Market price per share (Taka) 126.70 189.70 155.00 200.10 163.70 152.40 110.20
Earnings per share (Taka) 4.17 528 2.01 5.81 2.56 2.83 2.05
Dividend per share (Taka) 3.00 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 2.00
Dividend rate ( %) 30.00 35.00 35.00 35.00 35.00 20.00
Dividend payout ratio (%0) 71.94 66.92 60.24 136.92 123.51 97.35
Price earnings ratio (times) 30.38 36.27 34.44 63.95 5SE85 53.76
Dividend yield (%) 2.37 1.85 1.75 2.14 2.30 1.81
Number of employees 1,149 1,459 1,679 1,785 1,361 1,113

* Ratios are annualised.

Analysis of Turnover (%)

Cost of Materials /
Expenses ——

2019-2020
Salaries, Wages & Benefits paid
to employees

Duties & Taxes paid to 17.01% N, 4 6.36%
Government Exchequer

Profit

Comparison of Turnover & Costs S
Taka in Million

For the year ended For the year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 %

Turnover (Gross) 3,543.67 4,348.22 100

Cost of Materials 2,080.69 2,450.79 56.36
Expenses 602.77 721.64 16.60
Salaries, Wages & Benefits paid to Employees 523.66 526.97 12.12
Duties & Taxes paid to Government Exchequer 244.10 521.30 11.99
Profit 92.45 127.52 2.93
Total 3,543.67 4,348.22 100.00
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Message from the Chairman

pdeare QY anesidnavs

Assalamu Alaikum,

Coronavirus has humbled humanity. Businesses are undergoing severe hardship and there may
not be any remedy soon. The record rainfall and floods in the northern rivers added to the misery
of the farmers.

I am happy to note that our Crop Care employees faced the threat of virus and worked hard to
meet the requirements of the farmers, for which they deserve our special thanks.

Crop Care business was satisfactory but Paints and Mosquito Coil demands were depressed. It will
take a while for recovery.

Dear Shareowners, please take care about hygiene and ensure safety of yourself as well as that
of the members of your family.

The employees of ACI Formulations Limited are engaged in ensuring that business interests are
protected and | am confident that the organization will continue to grow under their watch.

)

oo o Lol

-

M. Anis Ud Dowla
Chairman
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Statement of Corporate Governance

In ACI FL Corporate Governance (CG) is a maxim that is intertwined in responsibility, compliance, transparency
and finally accountability. As a part of it, AClI FL acknowledges good corporate governance as the essential
element for success in business and recognizes that it is to be established by means of an effective CG Regime.
Accordingly, ACI FL emphasizes on stronger diligence to business, all operations being transparent and invites
larger involvement of the stakeholders. Aspiring on that, the Company has always strived to remain vigilant on
good governance and good business conduct so as to create and maintain value for shareholders, safeguard
stakeholders' interest and justify investor confidence. In this respect the Directors of ACI FL are also committed
to meeting the highest standards of governance and disclosure. And with that aim, the Board ensures the
integrity and firm attention of its employees, supported by a comprehensive framework of policies, guidelines and
internal control. The Directors are conscious of their own responsibilities in supervision and direction of affairs of
the Company in conformity with the practices of sound corporate governance. In fulfilment of those
responsibilities, the Directors have set for themselves the principles that will be followed in their own involvement

in the oversight functions and in setting up clear guidelines for the executive management.

The Governing Board

The Board of Directors of ACI FL, being the highest
authority in the Company, is constituted by a body
of very knowledgeable persons and includes core
competencies considered relevant in the context of the
Company. To further ensure a balanced representation,
the Board also includes Independent Directors, who are
very resourceful and dignified members of the society.
Thus, the Board of ACI FL is a compact body and meets
all the criteria required under the BSEC governing
Code. Further details about members of the Board are
appended at the appropriate parts in this report.

Composition of the Board

The Board consists of 7 (seven) members drawn from
the major shareowners and business professionals.
Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla is the Chairman of the Board and
Ms. Shusmita Anis is the Managing Director. Of the

seven Directors, five are non-executive Directors
including two Independent Directors. The non-executive
Directors are, however, available whenever business
operations call for their attention and involvement.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is the supreme authority of the Company to
oversee its operations through appropriate delegation,
monitoring, control and reporting. The Directors hold
the ultimate responsibility of conducting the activities
of the Company in accordance with law and in the
interest of its shareowners and other stakeholders,
keeping in view the long-term interest and aspirations
of the Company, while also discharging company’s
legal obligations to its shareowners.

Page 14 | Annual Report 2019-2020

Functioning of the Board

The Directors meet together for the dispatch of the
business and regulate the meetings and proceedings
according to the needs of the Company. Every Board
meeting is preceded by service of Notice well ahead of
scheduled time. Notice with agenda supported by working
papers for every meeting of the Board are sent to all
Directors well in advance so that they can come up with
their considered views and can actively participate at the
deliberations. During the meeting, the Board gets a
thorough review of the performance of the Company
through a PowerPoint presentation by the Managing
Director. All pertinent matters are discussed in details and
decisions are taken based on thorough considerations.
Questions arising at any meeting are decided by a
majority of votes. However, there is a procedure
supported by the Articles of Associations of the Company
which allows taking care of any urgent matter through
Resolution by Circulation. Such circular resolution is
adopted by the Directors present in Bangladesh, without
having to call a formal Board Meeting. To make it
transparent, such resolutions passed by circulation are
subsequently tabled at the immediate following Board
meeting and included in the minutes accordingly.

Management through People

The directors believe that a successful Board directs
and not manage. Rather they manage the
management. And with that spirit, the Board has
delegated adequate operational and financial authorities
to the Managing Director which empowers her to set up
the organizational structure, recruit appropriate people,
empower them to manage the Strategic Business Units
and functional areas and provide them guidance for
achievement of the desired results.




As the apex corporate authority, the Board is kept
informed of the goals, targets and initiatives of the
Business Units and apprised of the financial performance
on a regular quarterly basis.

The Managing Director is in charge of operations of the
Company and manages the affairs of the Company
through close consultation with relevant people from
within the Company and outside experts.

Empowerment of People

The Board has given clear guidelines to the Managing
Director to ensure that there is appropriate delegation
of authority and clear statement of accountability of

the management staff all the way down to the
supervisory level and that performance of the
individual is judged on the basis of clearly set
measurable goals and through objective assessment of
their achievements.

Reporting and Communication

The Managing Director reviews and approves the
strategic plans of each Business Unit every quarter. She
also reviews monthly report and commentary on the
sales and financial performance of business from the
heads of businesses and the activities of the functional
and service heads. An elaborate MIS system is in place.

Communication with Shareowners

The Board considers that good governance involves
openness and trustful cooperation among all
stakeholders concerned, including the shareowners of
the Company. Shareowners, being the ultimate
controllers of the Company, deserve to be informed in

all corporate respects required under the law. Annual
General Meeting (AGM) is the highest forum for
interaction between shareowners and management of
the Company. Accordingly, the Company holds the
AGM regularly and in time. The shareowners are
informed about the AGM well in advance and meeting
materials are dispatched to them with priority abiding
by laws and guidelines. The Directors attending the
Annual General Meeting note the views, aspirations
and suggestions of the shareowners and institutional
stakeholders offered at the AGM and consider them
with utmost attention. The Managing Director also
brings to the notice of the Board any written
communication received by her from the shareowners.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Managing Director has to satisfy the Board that
adequate internal check and controls are in place
through appropriate MIS and employment of Internal
Audit team to check and validate the expenses and
the systems in operation. To further strengthen
the controls, the Company has introduced ISO
9001:2008 Quality Management System, under which
all activities are carried out on the basis of Standard
Operating Procedures. These standard procedures
are updated on a regular basis in line with 1SO
requirements. The Company has also introduced 1SO
14001:2004 Environmental Management System, and
as a result has undertaken a task of continuing
improvement through annual goals. Internal Audit
department has been strengthened with induction of
qualified and experienced personnel, demonstrating
the Board's commitment to ensure that adequate risk
management and internal control systems are in place
across the Company.
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Independent Director

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSEC), the existing Board of Directors of the
Company includes two Independent Directors, Mr.
Golam Mainuddin and Mr. Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury.
Mr. Chowdhury is the Chairman of the Board Audit
Committee. The Independent Directors of the
Company have been elected amongst the senior
corporate leaders and bureaucrats of the country who
are elite members of the society having requisite
qualifications as prescribed by BSEC.

Appointment of Independent Director

Mr. Kamran Tanvirur Rahman completed his 6-year
(consecutive 2 terms) as Independent Director of the
Company on 27 April 2020. Accordingly, the Board of
Directors of the Company appointed Mr. Golam Mainuddin
in this place as Independent Director of the Company for
an initial tenure of three years with effect from 9 June
2020. The Board requested the shareholders to confirm
the appointment at their 24th Annual General Meeting.
The brief resume along with required information of the
Independent Director is available under the ‘Board of
Directors Profile’ of this report.

Distinctive Role of Chairman and
Managing Director

According to the Governance Code, the positions of
Chairman and Managing Director are being held by
separate individuals and their roles and responsibilities
are clearly established, set out in writing and which are
distinct from each other to ensure transparency and
better governance. The Chairman is a non-executive
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director and responsible for smooth functioning of the
Board, while the Managing Director acts as the Chief
Executive Officer and in charge of the day-to-day
operations of the Company.

Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit and Company Secretary

Under requirements of the BSEC Governance Code,
the Company has in place the above three key
positions held by three qualified professionals. Mr.
Pradip Kar Chowdhury, a Fellow Chartered Accountant,
acts as the Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Amitava
Saha, acts as the Head of Risk Management &
Internal Audit. While Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur
Rahman, a Fellow Chartered Secretary, is appointed
as the Company Secretary of the Company who is
responsible for overall governing compliance of the
Company and performs as the bridge between the
Board, Management and Shareholders. The roles,
responsibilities and duties of these three key positions
have clearly set forth in writing by the Board.

The Board Audit Committee

Following the Code of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC), the Board has
constituted an Audit Committee for the Company the
details of which are stated in the Audit Committee
Report forming part of this Annual Report. The
Committee comprises of 3 (three) Members from the
Board of Directors. All members of the Audit
Committee are financially literate and are able to
scrutinize and interpret financial statements while




discharging their duties and responsibilities as a
member of the Committee. The Chairman of the
Committee is an Independent Director having the
requisite qualification in line with BSEC Code. The
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the
Committee, as required by the BSEC Code. The Chief
Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance attend all meetings of the Committee
regularly as special invitees.

The key responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

1. Review and monitor the integrity of the financial
reporting system and ensure that Company
complies with the accounting policies, principles
and applicable standards.

2. Review and appraisal of the performance of the
internal audit and internal control system.

3. Review of the risks associated with the Company's
business operation including mitigation and
awareness plan.

4. Overseeing hiring and performance of external
auditors.

5. Other matters as per terms of reference as well as
time to time requirements of the Regulators.

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC)

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code,
the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting
held on 28 October 2020 has constituted a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee as a sub-committee of
the Board with the following non-executives Directors:

Mr. Golam Mainuddin, Independent Director - Chairman

Mr. Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury, Independent Director - Member

Mrs. Najma Dowla, Director - Member

Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman, the Company
Secretary is the ‘Secretary’ of the NRC. A detailed
Terms of Reference (ToR) and Policy of the NRC has
also been approved by the Board. However, NRC policy,
evaluation criteria and activities will be disclosed in the
next annual report.

The terms of reference of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and Policy include, among
other items, the determination of the Company's
policy on unique remuneration for Executive Directors,
the review, recommendation and/or approval of
remuneration to Directors, the review and approval of

the Company's remuneration policy, the creation of
evaluation criteria for Independent Directors and the
Board of Directors, identifying persons who are
eligible to become Directors and who may be
appointed to senior management in accordance with
the criteria laid down and recommending the
appointment or removal of such persons to the Board
and discharging such other functions and exercising
such other powers as the Board of Directors may
delegate / direct from time to time.

Reviewing of Business and Financial
operations

The operations of the Company are regularly
supervised, monitored and guided by the Board. The
purpose of business review is to ensure strategic
control and follow-up of results based on the prevailing
strategic objectives and value considerations. Financial
reviews provide the internal quarterly results follow-up
for the Company. The purpose is to provide an analysis
of the economic and financial situations, which will
then form the basis for external reporting and
presentations, and to provide quality assurance for the
financial reporting.

Governance is Subsidiary Companies:

ACI Formulation Limited (ACIFL) has one subsidiary
company under its corporate canopy. ACIFL, being the
holding company, applies the same governance
strategy in its subsidiary. In that exercise, the
Company has duly implemented the following as per
requirements of the BSEC CG Code:

a) Provisions relating to the composition of the
Board of holding company has also been applied
in the composition of the Board of the subsidiary
company;

b) The minutes of the Board meeting of the
Subsidiary company are placed for review at the
following Board meeting of the holding company;

c¢) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of
the holding company duly record that the Board
has also reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary
company, and

d) The Board Audit Committee of ACIFL duly
reviews the financial statements, in particular the
investments made by its subsidiary company.
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Report of The Audit Committee

For the year ended 30 June 2020

The Audit Committee Report presented under Condition No.5 (7) of the Corporate Governance Code as
adopted on 3 June 2018 by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) provides an insight
on the functions of the Audit Committee during 2019-20.

Audit Committee in ACI Formulations is a
sub-committee of the Board of Directors that assists
the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and by
effective monitoring of the business. The Audit
Committee acts on behalf of the Board and is
responsible to it. The jurisdiction of the Audit
Committee extends over the Company covering risk
management with special emphasis on ensuring
compliance with all applicable legislation and
regulation.

Composition and Meetings

Chairman : Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury, Independent
Director

Member : Dr. A.K.M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey,
Director

Member : Mrs. Najma Dowla, Director

Secretary : Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman,

Company Secretary

A total of 4 (Four) meetings of the Audit Committee
were held during the year under report. Company
Secretary functioned as the ex-officio Secretary to the
Committee as per regulatory guidelines. In addition to
that the Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit
and Compliance attended the meetings on invitation
and other officials attended as and when the
Committee required the presence to clarify any issue.

The detailed responsibilities of Audit Committee are
well defined in the Terms of Reference (ToR).
However, the major roles of the Audit Committee are
mentioned below:

(a) To review the quarterly and annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for
approval, ensure adequacy of internal audit
function, examine Management’s Discussions and
Analysis of important and pertinent issues,
review statement of all related party transactions
on a random basis and ensure action on
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Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control
weakness issued by statutory auditors etc.;

(b) To oversee the financial reporting process,
hiring and performance of external auditors;

(¢) To monitor choice of accounting policies, and
principles, and their adjustment, where so
required.;

(d) To oversee risk management, internal controls
arrangements and compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(e) To review the activity and performance of the
Internal Audit function.

The Audit Committee reports on its activities to
the Board of Directors. Audit Committee also
immediately reports to the Board of Directors
on: a) report on conflicts of interests, b) suspected
or presumed fraud or irregularity or material
defect in the internal control system, c) suspected
infringement of laws, rules and regulations including
those relating to securities , d) any other matter
which needs disclosure to the Board of Directors.

The Committee considered the scope and methodology
of the audits, as well as the independence, objectivity
and qualification of the external auditors. The Audit
Committee reviewed the external audit works and
concluded that the financial reporting was satisfactory
and in compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles in Bangladesh and that the audit was
satisfactorily conducted. In connection with financial
reporting, the Audit Committee also reviewed the
Company's financial statements. The Audit Committee
concluded that all reported financial results have been
presented in accordance with applicable rules.

The Audit Committee also reviewed ACI FL's
self-assessment of Corporate Governance practices,
based on a checklist provided by Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The
Committee concluded that Corporate Governance
practices within ACI FL generally exceeded the
standards laid down.




Besides these, the Audit Committee reviewed
risk identification, assessment and mitigation
methodologies, process and management. The
Committee concluded that risk management was
reasonably satisfactory, with the formulation of highly
structured and well-defined risk categories, as well as
the identification and review of the major risks
affecting ACI FL's flow of operations and their impact
in upcoming years.

The Audit Committee will continue to monitor the
progress made by Internal Audit Division for "Risk
Based Audit" by conducting critical examination of
random samples of Corporate Governance and Ethics
compliance issues, and ensuring the clearance/
resolution of outstanding items.

Summary of activities during the year

During the year under review the Committee,
interalia, focused on the following activities:

a) Reviewed and recommended the Annual
Financial Statements for the year ended on 30
June 2020 to the Board for approval.

Reviewed the Management Letter from external
auditors for the year under review along with
management's responses on the findings.

Reviewed the Auditors' Certification on Corporate
Governance compliance for the year ended 30
June 2020.

Reviewed the performance of the external
auditors during the year, their appointment
and remuneration for the next year and
recommended the same to the Board for
consideration.

Reviewed and ensured that the internal control
system including financial and operational

4

Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Secretary of the Committee

Dhaka, 28 October 2020

controls, accounting system, and reporting
structure are satisfactory.

Endorsed the internal audit plan 2020-21 and
review the progress against the approved
internal audit plan 2019-20.

Reviewed the regular reports submitted by the
Head of Risk Management and Internal Audit
and oversee the progress on implementation of
Management responses against internal audit
findings.

Reviewed the actions taken by the management
for implementation of Audit Committee
observations on issues deliberated in Audit
Committee reports.

The Committee placed its reports regularly to the
Board for reviewing and monitoring the activities
recommended on the internal control system,
compliance with rules and regulation of the
regulatory bodies.

The Committee reviewed unaudited quarterly
Financial Statements during the year under
review and recommended those to the Board
for its approval.

Based on the above review and discussion, the
Audit Committee is of the view that the
internal control and compliance procedures are
satisfactory to present a true and fair view of
the activities and financial status of the
Company.

Reviewed the financial statements of the
subsidiary company.

Reviewed the capital investments made by the
subsidiary company.

Received, reviewed and perused the letter
from Dhaka Stock Exchange on CG compliance
by the Company and duly replied in time.

Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury
Chairman of the Committee
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Directors' Report to the Shareowners

For the year ended 30 June 2020

the audited Financial Statements of ACI

30 June 2020.

The Directors are pleased to present herewith the Directors’ and Auditors’ Report together with
Formulations Ltd.

for the financial year ended

With diminishing arable land and ever growing
population to feed, the economic prosperity of
Bangladesh requires improvement of agricultural
productivity through extensive and judicious use of
Crop Care products and services. Also, with 15%
contribution to the National GDP and almost 50%
population getting employed, the Agriculture sector’s
development is of paramount importance.

Last year Bangladesh witnessed one of the worst
periods of adverse climatic condition. The major
rivers Jamuna & Tista recorded highest levels of
flood in the last 100 years, river Padma also flooded.
Repeated flooding and incessant rains at regular
intervals affected almost one third of cropland
particularly in the Northern districts causing serious
damage to paddy and vegetables cultivation. Finally
cyclone Amphan left behind a trail of destruction in
the coastal areas.

To add to the agony, COVID-19 restricted movement
of farmers, our Field Force and Dealers due to lock
down restrictions besides adversely impacting
transportation and import of Crop Care raw
materials causing price increase and stock out of
certain products thereof.

Further, unremunerative paddy prices led to
reduction in acreages during Aman season besides
impacting usage of pesticides for crop protection.
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While the Industry registered 8% degrowth, our
Crop Care Business shown degrowth by 5% over last
year. In Granular Insecticides segment we grew by
6% and in Herbicides segment we grew by 8%.
Further due to minimal stocks of Fungicides in the
market because of bad season during the previous
year, aggressive placement strategies and liquidation
initiatives, Crop Care grew at 30% in Fungicides
segment during last year.

Sulphur portfolio suffered significantly due to lack of
infestation and dramatic shift in sales to Fertilizer
complexes containing Sulphur because of 30%
subsidy provided by the Government.

Flora, is a bio-friendly plant energizer, flowering
stimulant and yield booster. Flora is having strong
brand image amongst the farmers. However, this
portfolio also suffered due to natural clamity
condition. We have more than 1000 demonstration
plots throughout the country to exhibit to the
farmers the benefits of using Flora in improving the
yield particularly in Rice. The improvement in yield
after using Flora had been recorded in the presence
of officials of Department of Agricultural Extension
(DAE).

Crop Care introduced five unique and new
generation solutions which will contribute to the
productivity of agriculture.




We are collaborating with two internationally
renowned chemical companies of Japan and India.
Besides the collaboration with the Multinational
companies, we have started working on several
projects under the cooperation of USAID and other
NGOs to disseminate the agricultural knowledge and
facilitate the farmers to increase their productivity.

The business has strengthened its Sales team and
taken steps to be more effective. Sales Promotional
Officers are directly working with farmers providing
Crop Care solutions in the field through Farmers’
Trainings.

During the year, Fall Armyworm had become a
concern for the whole country. A massive campaign
was arranged to make the farmers aware of this
serious issue and was successfully controlled through
appropriate recommendations. Even during the
COVID-19 pandemic situation, our employees have
been continuously visiting the fields and advising the
farmers in an apt manner on farm solutions besides

precautions to be taken for safeguarding from
COVID-19. Hence, our Marketing and Field Forces are
worthy to be appreciated for their hard work,
dedication and initiative.

ACI Crop Care has expanded its Research and
Development wing with a dedicated team for
conducting a large number of field trials on various
target crops to expand business opportunities from
existing molecules as well as new molecules.
Sizeable number of demos have been conducted last
year to exhibit the product efficacy to the farmers.
Trials with the new molecules are being undertaken
to explore their potentiality besides standardizing
the optimal dosage.

ACl Crop Care has been focusing to bring in
new generation of cost effective molecules,
disseminate knowledge to the farming community
for enhancement of productivity, create strong
dealer network to ensure prompt service in its
pursuit of excellence in its line of activities.
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Our Paints Division in association with global
partner AkzoNobel took an ambitious budget
for the year of 2019-20 but could not perform
due to some uncontrollable variables. During
the first six month we had to give high focus on
credit management and reduced credit by 30%.
Competitors were too aggressive in pricing and
also pushed their economy brands in where
products were absent. They also took market
dominating ATL and BTL activities, where we
were very conservative.

We could not do well during second quarter
because COVID-19 pandemic situation.
Construction industry was highly affected and
the paint industry recorded a massive negative
growth of 25%. Supply chain was disrupted and
supply was seriously hampered.

During the pandemic we however arranged
training program on different techno-
commercial modules by outside trainers to
enrich their knowledge and skills. Economy
brands will be launched soon.

We have implemented error free digital
construction loyalty scheme which will enable
to strengthen BTL activities. New software for
color visualization has been introduced for
client’s project preview to give the feel of
augmented reality. We are also working with
AkzoNobel to set up factory tinting system for
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performance coating which will enable us to
deliver customized products within the shortest
possible of time. Initiative has been taken to
reduce operating expense. The business value
chain being improved to enrich the top-line and
bottom-line.

Home Care Solution comprises of products from
both Pest & Non-pest Category. ACIl Aerosol
delivers the benefits of the most effective insect
killing solution to the consumers. As the
flagship brand of ACI Consumer Brands, it
continues leading the Aerosol category with
90.5% market share. On the contrary, ACI
Mosquito Coil, once a leading brand, has been
losing its market share to illegal brands and
unauthorized dosage coil manufacturers.
Branded coils used to dominate the market with
more than 70% share. However, the situation
has been reversed now and the market share of
branded coils has become less than 25% as
opposed to more than 75% share of
unauthorized and illegal coil brands.

In the non pest category, Angelic Air Freshener is
the pioneer in locally manufactured air
fresheners upholding the leading position in the
market. Angelic is now enriched with 11
refreshing fragrances satisfying the needs of
different occasions. On the contrary, Vanish Toilet
Cleaner has witnessed a positive growth in the



market after introducing the first Citrus variant
and our share has moved to 4.5% from 4%.

ACI Formulations Factory located in Gazipur on
a span of 42 acres of land is fully compliant
with the laws governing Safety, Health and
Environment. The factory has kept its
technological advancement in line with the
global developments and has additional space
to accommodate many new business tie ups.
Our state-of-the-art Effluent Treatment Plant
processes all liquid toxic waste materials to
make them benign. Efficient Incinerators helps
to break down the harmful solid materials at
high temperature to make them harmless. The

factory continues to get high rating for its
technological excellence from the foreign
associates.

We had an opportunity to purchase 13 bighas
of land adjacent to our factory. This will enable
us many activities where factory segregation is
required.

Corona virus has taken its tolls of our employees
as Gazipur has been one of the severely affected
areas. Our search for contract manufacturing
has not made much progress because of the
pandemic. We hope business will resume and we
will recover from the setback soon.
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Key Operating & Financial Information at a Glance

The key operating and financial information for the year 2019-20 along with the preceding five

and half years are presented below: ) R
Figures are in million (BDT)

July 2019- | July 2018- | July 2017- | July 2016- |January 2016 | December | December
Particulars June 2020 | June 2019 | June 2018 | June 2017 | -June 2016 | 2015 2014
(six month)

Net Turnover 3,422 4,025 4,127 3,629 1,625 3,006 2,908
Gross profit 1,065 1,211 1,027 1,108 477 800 739
Profit before tax 126 180 163 357 127 313 260
Profit after tax 92 128 115 261 90 235 188
Earnings per share (Taka) 2.05 2.83 2.56 5.81 2.01 5.23 417
Issued & paid capital 450 450 450 450 450 450 450
Shareowners' equity 2,407 2,472 2,502 2,455 2,283 2,350 1,806
Net asset per share (Taka) 53.48 54.93 55.59 54.55 50.74 52.23 40.12
Number of employees 1,113 1,361 1,785 1,679 1,489 1,459 1,149
Lg‘t?ggg,"g;ggggggf 244 522 669 564 256 387 246

Financial Results

For the year ended 30 June 2020, total revenue of ACI Formulations Limited was Taka 3,422 million,
resulting into 14.98% lower revenue over comparative year FY 2018-19. The main reason was
sharp drop in toll manufacturing portfolio. Due to huge presence of unauthorized and illegal coils,
the market share of branded coils shrank significantly during the year. As a result S.C. Johnson &
Son, Inc., the brand owner of coil, placed no order for coil production. Moreover, due to COVID-19
impact, revenue from paint business was also lower from FY 2018-19. However, despite having
lower revenue growth, gross profit margin has increased to 31.12% in FY 2019-20 from 30.08% of
FY 2018-2019 due to higher proportionate sales of high-margin products and favorable purchase
variance in Crop Care business in FY 2019-20 over FY 2018-19. On the other hand, financing cost
was lower by Taka 9 million, mainly due to efficient working capital management in FY 2019-20 over
FY 2018-19. In the current year, profit before tax (PBT) was Taka 126 million and profit after tax
(PAT) was Taka 92 million resulting into Earnings per Share Taka 2.05.

Appropriation of Profit

Considering the financial results of the Company during the year and free reserve carried over
and in line with following a consistent dividend policy, the Directors recommended appropriation
of net profit as follows:

Bsriauliar For the year ended For the year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Un-appropriated profit 727,896,037 757,880,523

Add: Net profit after tax 92,452,191 127,515,514

Add: Realization of revaluation reserve - -

Total profit available for appropriation 820,348,228 885,396,037
Appropriation of profit:

Final Dividend Proposed:

Cash Dividend 90,000,000 157,500,000

Total Dividend 90,000,000 157,500,000

Balance carried forward 730,348,228 727,896,037

With the balance carried forward and with future ploughing back of the profit, Directors are
confident that company will be able to maintain prudent dividend policy in coming years.

Dividend

The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend cash dividend @ 20% on face value of Tk. 10
per share (i.e. Taka 2 per share) for the year ended 30 June 2020 to those shareowners whose
names were appeared in the Share Register of Members of the Company or in the Depository list
of CDBL on the Record Date which is 1 December 2020. No Stock Dividend was declared as
interim dividend during the year.

Contribution to the National Exchequer

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the company contributed Taka 244 million to the National
Exchequer in the form of corporate tax, custom duty and Value Added Tax (VAT). This is
equivalent to 6.89% of the Company's gross sales revenue for the year 2019-20.
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Cost of Goods Sold and Profit Margins

For the year ended 30 June 2020, cost of goods sold was Taka
2,357 million (68.88% of net revenue) which was Taka 2,815
million (69.92% of net revenue) during the FY 2018-19, resulting
a marginal decrease of 1.04% cost due to favorable material cost
variance and changes of product mix over FY 2018-19. This has
resulted to increase gross profit margin of 31.12% (Taka 1,065
million) during the year ended 30 June 2020 as against 30.08%
(Taka 1,211 million) of the FY 2018-19. Higher gross profit
margin, coupled with controlled operating cost led to register PAT
2.7% in FY 2019-20.

Related Party Transactions

All transactions with related parties are made on a commercial
basis and the basis was the principle of "Armlength Transaction".
Details of related party transaction are disclosed in the Note - 37
of the Financial Statements.

Disclosure for Significant Deviation

For the year ended 30 June 2020, total revenue of ACI
Formulations Limited as a Group was Taka 3,422 million against
Taka 4,025 million of financial year 2018-19, resulting 14.98%
lower revenue over FY2018-19. The main reason was sharp drop
in toll manufacturing portfolio and paint business. Due to huge
presence of unauthorized and illegal coils, the market share of
branded coils shrank significantly during the year. As a result,
S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc., the brand owner of coil, placed no order
for coil production. Moreover, due to COVID-19 impact, revenue
from paint business was also lower from last year. Lower revenue
as well as shrinkage of toll manufacturing activity led to 12%
lower gross profit compared to FY 2018-19. However, due to
changes in product mix and favorable purchase variance in Crop
Care business over last year, gross profit margin has increased to
31.12% in the current year from 30.08% of FY 2018-2019. On
the other hand, operating cost and financing cost for the
reporting year decreased by 9.90% and 4.09% respectively
compared to last year due to effective and efficient control over
operating cost and working capital management. Due to theses
collective outcome, in the reported financial year, Profit Before
Tax (PBT) was Taka 126 million and Profit After Tax (PAT) was
Taka 92 million resulting into Earnings per Share Taka 2.05.

Consolidation of Accounts

The financial statements of the subsidiary company, Neem
Laboratories (Pvt.) Limited have duly been consolidated with the
financial statements of ACI Formulations Limited as per
requirements of the Companies Act-1994, Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission's guidelines and in line with the International
Accounting Standards (IASs)/IFRSs adopted by Bangladesh.
However, separate reports including the audited financial
statements, auditors’ and directors’ report for the subsidiary
company is provided at the respective section of this report.

Segment-wise performance

Segment-wise performance has been shown in Note-7(ii) of the
notes to the accounts of the financial statements.

Risk and Concern

The Company is aware of the different risks associated with doing
business and is prepared to counter those risks through

systematic approach. However, business may be affected by risks
and uncertainties presently not known to us or that we currently
believe to be immaterial. Financial risks management has been
disclosed in the Note — 34 of the Financial Statements.

Extraordinary Gain/Loss

No extra-ordinary gain or loss exists during the year as prescribed
by the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Utilization of Proceed (Public Issue)

No proceed has been raised by the Company through public issue,
right issue and any instruments during the year under review.
And, the financial results of the Company have continued to grow
as reflected in the annual financial statements of the Company.

Preparation and Fair Presentation of

Financial Statements

The Financial statements prepared by the management of the
Company present a true and fair view of Company's state of
affairs, result of its operation and changes in equity and cash
flows.

Books of Accounts

The books of accounts of the Company have been maintained in
accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 1994.

Accounting Policies

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in
preparation of the Financial Statements and that the accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

Application of IAS or IFRS to the Financial

Statements

International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) have been followed in
preparation of the financial statements.

Internal Control

Internal Control Policies in ACl FL is designed to ensure
operational efficiency, reliable financial reporting and sound
governance within and outside the Company. Accordingly, the
Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the
system of Internal Control is sound in design and has been
effectively implemented and monitored.

Declaration/Certification of CEO & CFO
The declaration or certification by the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) to the Board of the
Company as prescribed under the Codes of Corporate
Governance issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission is disclosed in Annexure - IV of this report.

Management Discussion & Analysis

The discussion and analysis duly signed by the Managing
Director of the Company presenting, among others, the
detailed analysis of the company’s operations, financial
position, performance, risk and concern, accounting policies &
estimation to the financial statements any changes thereof
have been disclosed in Annexure Il of this report.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company consist of 7 (seven)
members including 2 (two) Independent Directors. The majority
of members of the Board are non-executive. The list and details
of Directors are available under the ‘Directors Profile’ of this
report.

Re-election of Directors

By operation of Article 47 of the Company's Articles of
Association Mrs. Najma Dowla and Dr. Arif Dowla retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The
brief resume along with required information of the re-elected
directors are available under the ‘Directors Profile’ of this report.

Independent Director

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), the
existing Board of Directors of the Company includes two
Independent Directors, Mr. Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury and Mr.
Golam Mainuddin. Mr. Chowdhury is the Chairman of the Board
of Audit Committee. The Independent Directors of the Company
have been elected amongst the senior corporate leaders and
bureaucrats of the country who are elite members of the society
having requisite qualifications as prescribed by BSEC.

Appointment of Independent Director

Mr. Kamran Tanvirur Rahman completed his 6-year (consecutive
2 terms) as Independent Directors of the Company on 27 April
2020. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company
appointed Mr. Golam Mainuddin in this place as Independent
Director of the Company for an initial tenure of three years with
effect from 9 June 2020. The Board requested the shareholders
to confirm the appointment at their 24th Annual General
Meeting. The brief resume along with required information of
the Independent Director is available under the ‘Directors
Profile’ of this report.
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Board of
Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 28 October 2020
has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee as a
sub-committee of the Board with the following non-executives
Directors:

Mr. Golam Mainuddin, Independent Director - Chairman

Mr. Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury, Independent Director- Member

Mrs. Najma Dowla, Director - Member

Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman, the Company Secretary is
the ‘Secretary’ of the NRC. A detailed Terms of Reference (ToR)
and Policy of the NRC has also been approved by the Board.

The terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and Policy include, among other items, the
determination of the Company's policy on unique remuneration
for Executive Directors, the review, recommendation and/or
approval of remuneration to Directors, the review and approval
of the Company's remuneration policy, the creation of evaluation
criteria for Independent Directors and the Board of Directors,
identifying persons who are eligible to become Directors and who
may be appointed to senior management in accordance with the
criteria laid down and recommending the appointment or
removal of such persons to the Board and discharging such other
functions and exercising such other powers as the Board of
Directors may delegate/direct from time to time.

Board Meeting & Attendance

During the financial year 2019-2020, a total number of 5 (five)
meetings of the Board of Directors were held to transact
company’s affairs. The Attendance record of the Directors are
furnished in Annexure-I of this report.




Remuneration to Directors

During the year, the Company has paid a total of BDT 15,000/-
as Board meeting attendance fees. The remuneration of Directors
has been mentioned in Note — 30 and 37(b) of the Financial
Statements.

Shareholding Pattern

The pattern of shareholding as on 30 June 2020 of the Company
as prescribed by the Code of Corporate Governance issued by the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) is
furnished in Annexure-I1 of this report.

Minority Interest

The Board of Directors ensures that the Company operates within
the limit of its charter supported by the laws and codes of
corporate governance with regard to the rights of its minority
shareholders are protected from any direct or indirect abusive
actions by, or in the interest of, the controlling shareholders.
However, for contingency, there has been effective means of
redress.

Appointment of Auditors

The existing Auditors of the Company, M/s. Hoda Vasi Chowdury &
Co., Chartered Accountants, retire at this Annual General Meeting
on completion of their audit works for the year ended on 30 June
2020. They are not however eligible for reappointment. M/s. A.
Wahab & Co., Chartered Accountants, expressed their interest to
be appointed as auditors of the Company for the year 2020-2021
at a fee of Tk. 693,000/- plus VAT. Accordingly, Board recommends
the appointment to the shareholders of the Company.

Corporate Governance Compliance Status

ACI
development through quality assurance,

Formulations Limited believes in sustainable business
customer focus,
innovation, fairness, transparency and compliance, and
continuous improvement for enriching the quality of life of the
people. However, the Board and management of the Company
are committed to continuously strive for the highest standards
and ethics in governance practices with a view to safeguarding
the interest of its shareowners and innumerable stakeholders as
well. In this connection, we are pleased to confirm that the
Company has meanwhile complied with all the requirements
under the Corporate Governance Code adopted by Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission. The compliance checklist
for the year ended 30 June 2020 in this regard is appended in
Annexure —V of the Directors' Report. However, the Corporate
Governance Compliance Certificate as provided by M/s.
Al-Mugtadir Associates, Chartered Secretaries, is also enclosed in
Annexure-VI of this report.

On behalf of the Board

Shusmita Anis

Managing Director

Dhaka, 28 October 2020

&
Going Concern

The Board is of the opinion that the Company is indeed a going
concern. This is recognized through appropriate enquiries and
analyses, which establishes that the resources are adequate to
support the operations and that sufficient business opportunities
exist to justify the organization as a going concern and the
Directors analyze the financial statements accordingly to ensure
that. Accordingly, the Financial Statements are prepared on a
going concern basis and there is no doubt, whatsoever, upon the
Company's ability to continue as going concern.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

CSR is a central function of ACI FL and the projects and
programs under CSR are selected on basis of their relevance to
the business objectives of the Company. We are conscious of our
responsibility to manage a sustainable business organization
which requires a strong team to manage CSR and at the same
time respect the social aspirations concerning us.

The People of ACI FL

Our Human Resource department is continuously developing our
people by conducting customized training programs throughout
the year. We empower our workforce with delegated authority
and evaluate them under a scientific system called Balanced
Score Card and reward them according to their performance. We
acknowledge achievement of individuals and promote our
employees based on fair and transparent evaluation. ACI FL
takes its social responsibility seriously. Occupational health,
safety and environmental protection are always on top of our
priority list. We aspire to achieve better results and accordingly
set priorities and goals.

Acknowledgements

The Board of Directors firmly believes that ACI Formulations has
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propel the Company to newer heights. The performance of
the Company during the period under review, even with so
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in the Company. At this occasion, the Board expresses on
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and all other well-wishers for their support and patronage to
bring the company to this level. We value their continued support
to fulfill our mission to improve the lives of people.

Finally, and most importantly, we, on behalf of the Board of Directors
thank the employees of ACI Formulations in factories, depots, offices
and other locations across the country, for their untiring efforts. They
have worked hard, against all odds, uncertainties and adversities and
built a stronger organization that can create a greater positive impact
on the quality of life of the people.

Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury
Independent Director
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Annexure-I|
Number of Board Meetings and Attendance of Directors

As per condition no. 1 (5) (xxii) of the Corporate Governance Code 2018 issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission, the number of Board Meetings held and the Attendance by each Director during the Financial Year
2019-2020 are as follows:

Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla Chairman
Dr. A.K.M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey
Dr. Arif Dowla

Mrs. Najma Dowla

Director
Director
Director
Mr. Kamran Tanvirur Rahman
Mr. Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury
Ms. Shusmita Anis

Independent Director
Independent Director
Managing Director

= The Board granted leave of absence to the members who were unable to attend Board meetings as per laws.

Annexure-11

Pattern of Shareholding

As per condition no. 1 (5) (xxiii) of the Corporate Governance Code 2018 issued by Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission, the pattern of shareholding along with name wise details as on 30 June 2020

are as follows:

Condition no.

1(5) (xxiii) (a)

Name of Shareholders

| Position

Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related parties:

Advanced Chemical Industries Limited

| Parent Company

24,066,105

| No. of Shares held |% of Shares held

| 53.48%

1(5) (xxiii) (b)

Directors:
Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla

Chairman

4,504,500

10.01%

Dr. A.K.M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey

Director

1,129,500

2.51%

Advanced Chemical Industries Limited,
Represented By,

Mrs. Najma Dowla
Dr. Arif Dowla
Ms. Shusmita Anis

N/A

Director
Director
Director

24,066,105
4,500
1,800
1,800

53.48%
0.010%
0.004%
0.004%

Mr. Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury

Independent Director

Mr. Golam Mainuddin

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Aud

Ms. Shusmita Anis

Independent Director

Chief Executive Officer

1,800

it and Compliance:
0.004%

Mr. Pradip Kar Chowdhury

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman

Company Secretary

1(5) (xxiii) (c)

1(5) (xxiii) (d)

Mr. Amitava Saha

Head of Internal Audit

Executives (Other than Directors, CEO, CS, CFO and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance):

Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest in the Company:

Advanced Chemical Industries Limited

Holding Company

24,066,105

53.48%

Investment Corporations of Bangladesh (ICB)

Institution

6,529,159

14.51%

Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla

Chairman

45,04,500
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Annexure-I111
Management Discussion and Analysis

As per condition no. 1 (5) (xxv) of the Corporate Governance Code 2018 issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Management’s Discussion & Analysis are as follows:

Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements

The Company follows International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and International Accounting Standards
(IASs) along with local regulations applicable for preparation of financial statements. Detail description of accounting
policies and estimation used for preparation of the financial statements of the Company are disclosed in the notes 4 and
6 to the financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies and estimation

The Company has been following consistent policies and estimation. There are no such changes in accounting policies or
estimation which has material impact on financial statements.

Comparative analysis of financial performance and financial position as well as cash
flows for current financial year with immediately preceding five and half years

Major areas of financial performances and financial position as well as cash flows with immediate preceding five and half
years are as follows:
Figures in million except ratios and percentage (BDT)

Particulars 2014 2015 Jgne 2016 July 16- July 17- July 18- July 19-
(Six Month)| June 17 June 18 June 19 June 20

Net Turnover 2,908 3,006 1,625 3,629 4,127 4,025 3,422
Gross profit 739 800 477 1,108 1,027 1,211 1,065
Profit before tax 260 SiLE 127 357 163 180 126
Profit after tax 188 235 90 261 115 128 92
Earnings per share (Taka) 4.17 5823 2.01 5.81 2.56 2.83 2.05
EBITDA 373 435 188 551 406 485 416
Issued & paid capital 450 450 450 450 450 450 450
Shareowners' equity 1,806 2,350 2,283 2,455 2,502 2,472 2,407
Net asset per share (Taka) 40.12 52.23 50.74 54.55 55.59 54.93 53.48
';:: ;’ﬁ:{:t(ﬁgkgs'“ flows 0.25 (5.16) 1.05 (6.54) (2.74) (6.00) 14.85

The Company has maintained a consistent growth over the analyzed periods as depicted in the analysis enumerated above.

Comparison of financial performances and financial position as well as cash flows
with peer industry scenario

The Company is diversified business conglomerate having several businesses in different sectors. Accordingly, the
company has no such peer company to draw a reasonable comparison.

Explanation of the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe

After remaining buoyant in the first-three quarters of FY2019-20, economic activities drastically shattered, in the fourth
quarter, particularly in the industry and service sectors, disrupted by an unprecedented lockdown measures to limit the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. During this period, industrial production dropped significantly, driven mostly by a
precipitous fall in manufacturing output, while the service sector activities stalled by the partial and often complete
shutdown of transportation, trade, and hospitality industries. But the agriculture sector maintained firm growth during
this period, aided by supportive government initiatives. Nonetheless, the preliminary estimates by Bangladesh Bureau of
Statistics (BBS) suggest that real GDP growth slided to 5.24% in FY2019-20 from 8.15% in FY2018-19.

The headline CPI inflation (point-to-point) increased to 6.02% in Q4 of FY2019-20 from 5.48% in Q3 of FY2019-20 amid
some volatility, driven by a rise in food prices that emanated mostly from pandemic- induced global and domestic supply
chain disruptions. Though food inflation witnessed a notable rise during the quarter, non-food inflation moderated

Page 34 | Annual Report 2019-2020




because of subdued demand of elastic items. Accordingly, 12-month average inflation rose to 5.65% in FY2019-20 from
the target of 5.50% for FY2019-20.

During the last quarter of FY2019-20, government borrowings from the banking system increased with sliding
government revenues caused by the economic fallout of the pandemic along with an uptick in net foreign asset that lead
to a broad money (M2) growth of 12.64%, close to the target growth for FY2019-20. Credit growth to the private sector
further moderated to 8.61% which was far below the target for FY2019-20. Interest rates in the interbank and retail
markets witnessed downward movement during the last quarter because of reductions in both the repo rate and cash
reserve ratio (CRR) by 50 basis points and 100 basis points, respectively. Among other indicators related to banking
sector, the ratio of gross non-performing loans edged up to 9.16% in Q4 of FY2019-20 compared to the level of Q3 of
FY2019-20.

Current account deficit (CAD) widened to an eight-quarter high of USD 2,439 million in Q4 of FY2019-20, resulted from
a sharper fall of exports than imports triggered by the pandemic. Nevertheless, the overall balance of balance of
payment (BOP) witnessed a surplus of USD 3,310 million during this period bolstered by record high quarterly financial
inflows (USD 5,216 million). Nominal exchange rate of BDT against USD remained broadly stable owing to net purchase
of USD from the foreign exchange market by Bangladesh Bank.

On the fiscal side, budget deficit rose significantly in Q4 of FY2019-20 and about 70% of deficit financing was met from
domestic sources (banks and non-bank) during the last quarter.

While looking in to the Global Economy, the commodity, food and non-food, prices in the global market, especially
energy prices, showed some recovery in Q4 of FY2019-20 from the pandemic driven dip in the previous quarter. Led by
oil prices, energy prices rose by 15.04% in June 2020 compared to March 2020 amid phased reopening of global
lockdowns. Moreover, global non-energy and food prices increased in the last quarter. Inflation in selected South Asian
Countries followed a mixed trend in Q4 of FY2019-20. Inflation in Pakistan and Sri Lanka decreased to 8.6% and 6.3%
in Q4 of FY2019-20 from 10.2% and 7.0% in Q3 of FY2019-20 respectively, while inflation in India increased to 6.1% in
Q4 of FY2019-20 from 5.9% in Q3 of FY2019-20. Looking ahead, upside risk to headline inflation in the near term may
arise from the slowdown in economic activities resulted from supply and demand disruption caused by the pandemic
driven mitigation measures. Again, further inflationary pressure may create from recent crop loss due to cyclone
‘Amphan’ and recent prolonged flood in the northern and middle parts of the country. Moreover, policy response of the
food-exporting countries regarding restrictions on food export is likely to affect food inflation in the near future.

Risk and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such risk and
concerns mitigation plan of the company

The Company has exposure to the Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market Risk arising from the financial statements. The
detail explanation of risk and concerns along with the Risk Management Framework are explained in the note 34 to the
financial statements published in this annual report.

The Company has taken sufficient steps and controls effectively consistently round the year to mitigate the risk and
concerns.

Future plan for company’s operation, performances and financial position

The Company has taken all sorts feasible plans, strategy and vision to continue the operations of the company for
foreseeable future. This is relevant to share that company maintains a periodic action plans along with mid-term and
long-term strategies to maintain the sustainability in its performances and financial position.

QZM«/@%

Shusmita Anis
Managing Director
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Annexure-1V
[As per condition No. 1(5) (xxvi)]

DECLARATION BY CEO AND CFO

28 October 2020

The Board of Directors

ACI Formulations Limited

ACI Centre, 245, Tejgaon I/A,
Dhaka 1208.

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2020.

Dear Sir,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5) (xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, Dated 3 June, 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and
Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

@

€]

3

4

)

(®)

The Financial Statements of ACI Formulations Ltd. for the year ended on 30 June 2020 have been
prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been
adequately disclosed;

The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and
fairly presented in its financial statements;

To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal
control and maintenance of accounting records;

Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements
is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that: -

We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2020 and that to the best of
our knowledge and belief:

a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of
Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

Managing Director Pradip Kar Chowdhury

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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Annexure-V

Status of Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (CGC)

[As per condition No. 1(5) (xxvii)]

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No.
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018

(Report under Condition No. 9)

Conditi Status
S Title . Not- Remarks
Complied Complied
1(1) The number of Board members shall not be less than 5 (five) and more than 20 Complied
(twenty);
1(2)(a) At least one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors shall be Independent i
Directors (ID); Complied
1(2)(b) (i) IDs do not hold any share or holds less than 1% shares of the total paid-up c lied
shares of the Company; omplie
1(2)(b)(ii) ID is not a sponsor and not connected with any sponsor or director or
nominated director or shareholder or any of its associates, sister concerns,
subsidiaries and parents or holding entities who holds one percent (1%) or | Complied
more shares of the total paid-up shares and his or her family members shall not
hold above mentioned shares;
1(2)(b)(iii) ID has not been an executive of the company in immediately preceding two Complied
financial years; P
1(2)(b)(iv) ID does not have any pecuniary or otherwise relationship with the company or Complied
its subsidiary/associated companies;
1(2)(b)(v) ID is not a member or TREC holder, director or officer of any stock exchange; Complied
1(2)(b)(vi) ID is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director or officer of any
member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital | Complied

market;

1(2)(b)(vii) ID is/was not a partner or an executive of company’s audit firms engaged in )
Statutory Audit or Internal Audit or Special Audit or Compliance Certification of | Complied
the Codes during preceding three years;

1(2)(b)(viii) |ID shall not be independent director in more than five listed companies; Complied

1(2)(b)(ix) ID has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in Complied
payment of any loan or any advance to a bank or NBFI;

1(2)(b)(x) ID has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude; Complied

1(2)(c) :gf\)ﬂqintment of ID shall be done by Board and approved by shareholders in the Complied

1(2)(d) The position of IDs cannot remain vacant for more than ninety days. Complied

1(2)(e) The tenure of office of an ID shall be for Three years, which may be extended Complied

for One tenure only

1(3)(a) ID shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is able to ensure
compliance with financial, corporate laws, regulatory requirements and can
make meaningful contribution to the business;

Complied

1(3)(b) (i) ID is a Business Leader who is/was a promoter or director of an unlisted
company having minimum paid-up capital of One Hundred million or any listed Complied
company or a member of any national or international chamber of commerce or
business association

1(3)(b)(ii) ID is/was a Corporate Leader as top level executive as adopted by the code and )
a candidate with equivalent position of an unlisted company having minimum |Complied
paid up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a listed company;

1(3)(b)(iii) ID was Former official of government in the position not below 5th Grade of the )
national pay scale and educational background of bachelor degree in economics | Complied
or commerce or business or law;

1(3)(b)(iv) ID is/was University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or

Commerce or Business Studies or Law; N/A
1(3)(b)(v) ID is/was a professional or an advocate practicing in the HCD of Bangladesh Complied

Supreme Court or a CA,CMA, CFA, CCA, CPA and CS or equivalent qualification; P
1(3)(c) The ID shall have at least Ten years of experiences in any field mentioned in c lied

clause (b); omplie:
1(3)(d) Special cases for relaxing qualifications or experiences with prior approval of N/A

the Commission.

Contd.
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conditi Status

ondition .

Title - Not- Remarks
2l Complied| complied

1(4)(a) Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the companies is
different individuals having clearly defined their respective roles and |Complied
responsibilities by Board.

1(4)(b) Chairperson of the Board and the MD and/or CEO of the company shall be lied
different individuals; Complie

1(4)(c) Chairperson elected from among the non-executive directors of the company; Complied

1(4)(d) The Board clearly defined respective roles for Chairman and the Managing .
Director; Complied

1(4)(e) In absence of Chairman, the remaining members may elect one from Complied
non-executive directors as Chairperson for that particular Board’s meeting;

1(5)() An industry outlook and possible future developments; Complied

1(5)(ii) Segment-wise or product-wise performance. Complied

1(5)(iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat to Complied
sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any;

1(5)(iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin, Complied
where applicable;

1(5)(v) A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and their implications Complied
(gain or loss);

1(5)(vi) A detailed discussion and statement on related party transactions; Complied

1(5)(vii) A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rights issues .
and/or any other instruments; Complied

1(5)(viii) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes for
Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, | Complied
Direct Listing, etc.;

1(5)(ix) An explanation on any significant variance between Quarterly Financial .

: - - Complied
performances and Annual Financial Statements;

1(5)(x) A statement of Directors remuneration; Complied

1(5)(xi) A statement on fair preparation of the financial statements by the management Complied
of the issuer company; p

1(5)(xii) A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company have been Complied
maintained; p

1(5)(xiii) A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied
in the financial statements and that the accounting estimates are based on | Complied
reasonable and prudent judgment;

1(5)(xiv) IAS / BAS / IFRS / BFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in )
preparation of the financial statements and any departure there-from has been | Complied
adequately disclosed.

1(5)(xv) A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been Complied
effectively implemented and monitored; p

1(5)(xvi) A statement with regard to the protection of minority shareholders from Complied
abusive actions of controlling shareholders.

1(5) (xvii) A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer company’s ability Complied
to continue as a going concern; p

1(5)(xviii) An explanation that significant deviations from the last year’s operating results
of the issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be | Complied
explained;

1(5)(xix) Key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) years shall be c lied
summarized; omplie

1(5)(xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared dividend Complied
(cash or stock) for the year; p

1(5) (xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has been Complied
or shall be declared as interim dividend; p

1(5) (xxii) The total number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by .

) X Complied
each director;

1(5)(xxiii)(a) |Parent / Subsidiary / Associated Companies and other related parties (name Complied
wise details); p

1(5)(xxiii)(b) | Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Complied
Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children (name wise details); p

1(5)(xxiii)(c) |Executives; Complied
1(5)(xxiii)(d) [Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the c lied
company (name wise details). omplie
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conditi Status
ondition .
Title . Not- Remarks
L Complied| ¢ompjied
1(5)(xxiv)(a) |A brief resume of the director; Complied
1(5)(xxiv)(b) | Nature of expertise in specific functional areas; Complied
1(5)(xxiv)(c) | Names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and Complied
membership of board committees;
A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD Complied
1(5)(xxv)(a) |Presenting detailed analysis of accounting policies and estimation for Comolied
preparation of financial statements; P
1(5)(xxv)(b) |Presenting detailed analysis of changes in accounting policies and estimation, if Complied
any;
1(5)(xxv)(c) |Presenting detailed analysis of comparative analysis (including effects of
inflation) of financial performance or results and financial position as well as Complied
cash flows for current financial year with immediate preceding five years
explaining reasons thereof;
1(5)(xxv)(d) |Presenting detailed analysis of compare such financial performance or results c lied
and financial position as well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario; omplie
1(5)(xxv)(e) |Presenting detailed analysis of briefly explain the financial and economic Complied
scenario of the country and the globe;
1(5)(xxv)(f) |Presenting detailed analysis of risks and concerns issues related to the financial Complied
statements, explaining such risk and concerns mitigation plan of the company; P
1(5)(xxv)(g) |Presenting detailed analysis of future plan or projection or forecast for company’s
operation, performance and financial position, with justification thereof, i.e., | complied
actual position shall be explained to the shareholders in the next AGM;
1(5) (xxvi) Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as required lied
under condition No. 3(3) disclosed as per Annexure-A; Complie
1(5) (xxvii) The report and compliance certificate disclosed as per Annexure-B and .
Annexure-C; Complied
1(6) Conducting Board meetings and recording the minutes of the meetings and Complied
keeping required books and records in line BSS as adopted by the ICSB; p
1(7)(a) Code of conduct, based on the recommendation of the NRC for the Chairman of Complied
the Board, other board members and Managing Director of the company; P
1(7)(b) Code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the website of c lied
the company; omplie
2(a) Composition of the Board of the subsidiary company; Complied
2(b) Independent director of the holding company on the Board of the subsidiary .
company; Complied
2(c) Review of minutes of the subsidiary company’s Board meeting by the holding c lied
company’s Board; omplie
2(d) Statement as to the review of minutes of Subsidiary company by the holding c lied
company’s Board. omplie
2(e) Review of financial statements of Subsidiary company by the Audit Committee Complied
of the holding company; omplie
3(1)(a) The Board shall appoint a MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC; Complied
3(1)(b) The positions of the MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall be filled by different c lied
individuals; omplie
. Taken up with
3(1)(c) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold any _ requlotors for
executive position in any other company at the same time; exemption
3(1)(d) Respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS; Complied
3(1)(e) Removal of the MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC with approval of the Board and c lied
immediate dissemination to BSEC and stock exchange(s); omplie
3(2) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend the meetings of Complied
the Board;
3(3)@)0) Certification of CEO and CFO as to the review of financial statements with Comolied
declaration that there is no materially untrue and misleading statement; P
3(3)(a)(ii) Certification of CEO and CFO as to the true and fair view of the financial Complied
statements and affairs of the Company’s per applicable laws;
3(3)(b) Certification of CEO and CFO that to the best of their knowledge and belief Complied
there was no fraudulent, illegal transactions during the year;
3(3)(c) The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the Annual Report | Complied
4(i) Board Audit Committee (BAC) Complied
Contd.

ACl
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Conditi Status
ondition .
Title . Not- Remarks
No Complied Complied
4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Complied
5(1)(a) BAC as a sub-committee of the Board; Complied
5(1)(b) BAC shall assist the Board of Directors as to the the financial statements reflect .
o ] N Complied
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company;
5(1)(c) BAC is responsible to the Board. The duties of the BAC is clearly set forth in complied
writing. P
5(2)(a) BAC is composed of 3 (three) members. Complied
5(2)(b) The Board appointed members of BAC who are non-executive directors and c lied
Chairperson is an ID. omplie
5(2)(c) All members of BAC are “financially literate” and 1 (one) member have )
accounting or related financial management background and 10 (ten) years of | Complied
such experience;
5(2)(d) Filling of casual vacancy in the BAC. Complied
5(2)(e) The CS shall act as the Secretary of the Committee. Complied
5(2)(F) The quorum of the BAC meeting have not constitute without ID Complied
5@3)(a) The Board of Directors select 1 (one) ID as the Chairman of BAC; Complied
5(3)(b) Election of Chairman of the particular meeting in absence of regular Complied
Chairperson of BAC recording the reasons of such absence in the minutes. P
5(3)(c) Chairman of the BAC shall remain present in the AGM. Complied
5(4)(a) BAC conducted four meetings in the financial year: Complied
5(4)(b) The quorum of the meeting of BAC constituted in presence of either two c lied
members including ID or two third of the members , whichever was higher; omplie
5(5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process. Complied
5(5)(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles. Complied
5(5)(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately complied
resourced; p
5(5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors; Complied
5(5)(e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual c lied
financial statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption; omplie
5(5)() Review with the management, the annual financial statements before C .
. . omplied
submission to the Board for approval;
5(5)(9) Review with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial Complied
statements before submission to the Board for approval P
5(5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function; Complied
5(5)() Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the .
X Complied
Annual Report;
5(5)() Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the Complied
management;
5(5)(k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by c lied
statutory auditors; omplie
565)(0) Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of
expertise deployed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the | Complied
performance of external auditors;
5(5)(m) Oversee whether the proceeds raised IPO or RPO or Rights Share Offer have
been utilized per the purposes stated in relevant offer document or prospectus | Complied
approved by the Commission;
5(6)(a)(i) The BAC shall report on its activities to the Board. Complied
5(6)(a)(ii)(a) | The BAC shall immediately report to the Board if any report on conflicts of interests | Complied
5(6)(a)(ii)(b) | The BAC shall immediately report to the Board if any suspected or presumed
fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in the internal audit and | Complied
compliance process or in the financial statements;
5(6)(a)(ii)(c) | The BAC shall immediately report to the Board if any suspected infringement of Complied
laws, regulatory compliances including securities related laws, rules and regulations P
5(6)(a)(ii)(d) | The BAC shall immediately report to the Board if any other matter which the c lied
Audit Committee deems necessary. omplie
5(6)(b) If any material impact on the financial condition and results of operation, Complied
unreasonably ignored by the management
5(7) Report on the activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any Complied
report made to the Board of Directors under condition 5(6)(a)(ii) P
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Condition
No

Title

Status

Complied

Not-
Complied

Remarks

6(1)(2)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the
Board;

Complied

6(1)(b)

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or
policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and
independence of directors and top level executive as well as a policy for formal
process of considering remuneration of directors, top level executive;

Complied

6(1)(c)

ToR of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in writing covering the areas stated at
the condition No. 6(5)(b).

Complied

6(2)(a)

The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an
independent director;

Complied

6(2)(b)

All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors.

Complied

6(2)(c)

Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Board

Complied

6(2)(d)

The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the
Committee

Complied

6(2)(e)

In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of the
Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy
within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the
Committee;

No shuch case
in the year

6(2)(f)

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external expert
and/or member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting
member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from such external
expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the
Committee;

No shuch case
in the year

6(2)(9)

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee.

Complied

6(2)(h)

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at
least an independent director

Complied

6(2)()

No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any
remuneration for any advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than
Director’s fees or honorarium from the company

Complied

6(3)(a)

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the
Committee, who shall be an independent director

Complied

6(3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members may
elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason
of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes

No shuch case
in the year

6(3)(©)

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting (AGM) to
answer the queries of the shareholders

Complied

64 (@)

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year.

6(4)(b)

The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon
request by any member of the NRC

No shuch case
in the year

6(4)(c)

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of
either two members or two third of the members of the Committee, whichever
is higher, where presence of an independent director is must as required under
condition No. 6(2)(h);

Complied

6(4)(d)

The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the
minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC;

Complied

6(5)(2)

NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to
the shareholders;

Complied

6(5)(b) () (a)

NRC shall oversee, formulate & recommend to the Board regarding the level
and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully;

Complied

6(5)(b) () (b)

NRC shall oversee, formulate & recommend to the Board regarding the
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks;

Complied

6(5)(P) () (c)

NRC shall oversee, formulate & recommend to the Board regarding
remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed
and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

Complied

6(5)(b)(ii)

NRC shall oversee & make report with recommendation to the Board regarding
devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender,
experience, ethnicity, educational background and nationality;

Complied

Contd.

ACl
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conditi Status

ondition .

. = Remarks
No Title Complied Co”ﬁ)tlied

6(5)(b)(iii) NRC shall oversee & make report with recommendation to the Board regarding
identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be Complied
appointed in top level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid
down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

6(5)(b)(iv) NRC shall oversee & make report with recommendation to the Board regarding
formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors | Complied
and the Board;

6(5)(b)(v) NRC shall oversee & make report with recommendation to the Board regarding
identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine | Complied
their selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria;

6(5)(b)(vi) NRC shall oversee & make report with recommendation to the Board regarding )
developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human | Complied
resources and training policies;

6(5)(c) The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the )
evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual | Complied
report;

The issuer Company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors - Complied

7(1)() - to perform the appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions of the Complied

company.

7(1) (i) - to perform the financial information systems design and implementation of Complied

the company. p

7(1) (i) - to perform book-keeping or other services related to the accounting c lied

records or financial statements of the company. omplie

7(1)(iv) - to perform broker-dealer services of the company. Complied

7(1)(v) - to perform actuarial services of the company. Complied

7(1)(vi) - to perform internal audit services or special audit services of the company. | Complied

7(1)(vii) - to perform any service that the Audit Committee determines of the complied

company. P

7(1)(viii) - to perform audit or certification services on compliance of corporate Complied

governance as required under condition No. 9(1) of the company. P

7(1)(ix) - to perform any other service that creates conflict of interest of the Complied

company.

7(2) No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any share of
the company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of Complied
that company; his or her family members also shall not hold any shares in the
said company;

7(3) Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the
Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General | Complied
Meeting) to answer the queries of the shareholders;

8(1) The Company shall have an official website linked with the website of the stock c lied
exchange; omplie

8(2) The Company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing; Complied

8(3) The Company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website as .
required under the listing regulations of the concerned stock exchange(s) ; Complied

9(1) Compliance Audit certification and its disclosure in the Annual Report; Complied

9(2) Compliance certification professional shall be appointed by the shareholders in Complied
the AGM;

9(3) The directors of the Company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure-C
attached, in the directors’ report whether the Company has complied with these | Complied
conditions or not;
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Report to the Shareholders of ACI Formulations Limited
on compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

(as required under the BSEC Codes of Corporate Governance)

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by ACI Formulations
Limited for the year ended on 30th June 2020. This code relates to the gazette notification no:
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated the 3rd June 2018 of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC).

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in
ensuring compliance to the conditions of Corporate Governance Code. This is a scrutiny and verification
and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as well as provisions
of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of
the Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations or representations, which we have
required, and after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that in our opinion and subject to the
remarks and observations as reported in the connected Compliance Statement :

(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above
mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission.

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
(BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by
this Code.

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the Company as required under the Companies Act
1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws, and

(d) The standard of governance in the Company is satisfactory.

This report, however, is no endorsement about quality of contents in the Annual Report of the Company
for the year 2019-20.

Al-Muqtadir Associates
Chartered Secretaries & Consultants

A.K.A. Muqgtadir FcS
Dhaka, November 26, 2020 CEO & Chief Consultant
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of ACI Formulations Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ACI Formulations Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) as well as the separate financial statements of ACI Formulations Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the consolidated
and separate statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate statements

of changes in equity and consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements give true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group and the separate financial position of the Company as at 30 June
2020, and of its consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters for the audit of financial statements are as under:

Key audit area Our responses

Carrying value (CV) of Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and its impairment

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls over PPE. Our audit procedures included, among
others, considering the impairment risk of the assets.

PPE includes the Group’s and the Company’s
long-term assets, which flow economic benefits to
the entities more than one year. PPE is measured
at cost or revaluation less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.
The items of PPE excluding under construction
assets were revalued by a professional valuer in
2015 on the basis of applicable methods including

Followings are our audit procedures on the carrying value
and impairment risk of PPE:

e Reviewing basis of recognition, measurement and
valuation of assets;

market value-based method. The carrying value
of PPE represents significant portion of total
assets, which is amounting to Tk. 190.3 crore for
the Company and Tk. 190.4 crore for the Group
at the reporting date. In other words, for both the
Company and the Group, approximately 35% of
total assets are represented by PPE.

The carrying value of PPE is the function of
depreciation charges on cost/revaluated that
involved estimation. Therefore, it has been
considered as a significant area of auditor’s
judgment and requires special attention. It is a

Observing procedures of assets acquisition, depreciation
and disposal;

Checking ownership of the major assets;

Checking the Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP) and its
transfer to PPE as well as capital expenditure commitment;

Performing due physical asset verification on sample
basis at the year-end;

Checking estimated rates of depreciation being used
and assessed its fairness;

Discussing with the management about the fair value of
the assets and assessing independently whether the CV
approximates the fair value at the reporting date;

Page 1 of 6
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Key audit area

Our responses

matter to consider that the carrying value of PPE
may be higher than the recoverable amount and
the impairment charges thereon may not have
been recognised.

e Evaluating the Group’s assumptions in relation to
recoverable amounts of the major PPE to identify if there
is any requirement of recognition of impairment; and

< Finally, assessing the appropriateness and presentation
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards.

Our testing did not identify any issues with regard to CV of
PPE and any indicators that would trigger impairment.

Refer to the note no. 8 and 8(a) of the financial statements.

Inventory valuation

At year end the Company and the Group as a
whole reported inventory of Tk. 127 crore —
approximately 23% of total assets — of goods
held in depots, central warehouse and factories.
Inventories are carried at lower of cost and net
realizable value.

The Group provides provision for obsolescence or
slow-moving based on age analysis of inventories.
This methodology relies upon assumptions made
in determining appropriate provisioning amount
to inventory balances. Therefore, it has been
considered as key area of auditor’s judgment and,
thereby requiring special attention.

We obtained a detailed understanding and evaluated the
design and implementation of controls that the Group has
established in relation to inventory valuation.

We obtained assurance over the appropriateness of
management’s assumptions applied in calculating the
value of inventory provisions.

Our substantive procedures in relation to the inventory
comprise the followings:

e Evaluating the design and implementation of key
inventory controls operating across the Group including
Distribution Centres, Warehouses and Branches on
sample basis;

e Attending inventory counts at the year-end and
reconciling the results of counting to the inventory
listings to test the completeness of data;

e Critically assessing the Group’s inventory provisioning
policy, with specific consideration given to aged
inventory as well as stock turnover calculations,
including the impact of seasonality;

e Comparing the net realizable value, obtained through a
detailed review of sales subsequent to the year-end, to
the cost price of inventories and comparing to the
associated provision to assess whether inventory
provisions are complete; and

« Reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory provision
and the level of inventory write-offs during the year.

Our procedures above did not identify any issues with
regard to inventory.

Refer to the note no. 12 and 12(a) of the financial statements.

Inter-company balances

The carrying value of the inter-company
receivables and payables of the Company was at
Tk. 2.5 crore and Tk. 86.4 crore as at 30 June
2020 representing 0.46% of total assets and
27.8% of total liabilities of the Company,
respectively.

At the time of conducting our audit of the separate
financial statements of the Company, we have
identified the recoverable value of the Company’s
inter-company receivable stated at amortized
cost.

We assessed the processes and controls put in place by the
Company over inter-company transactions. Our substantive
procedures in relation to the inter-company balances
comprise the followings:

e Understanding and analyzing the nature and reasons for
inter-company transactions;

e Studying board minutes for the approval of loans to the
group entities;

* Reviewing independently the financial capabilities of the
subsidiary to meet the obligations and also, reviewing
the financial statements of subsidiary;
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We have also assessed the Company’s ability to
repay inter-company payables, through detailed
analysis of the Company’s income and cash
generating abilities.

Management has  conducted impairment
assessment and calculated recoverable value of
these inter-company receivables, and
reimbursement capability of the inter-company
payables in accordance with IFRS 9: Financial
Instruments. Therefore, it is a matter to consider
whether those receivables and payables have been
misstated due to non-recognition of impairment or
inability to repay.

* Reviewing independently the financial capabilities of the
Company to meet the obligations, and through review of
the financial statements of the Company;

* Checking the transactions between the Group entities on
sample basis;

e Obtaining confirmations from the group entities at the
reporting date on the closing balances of inter-company
transaction and its reconciliation whenever necessary;

e Performing impairment test on the inter-company
receivable balances and review of the key indicators
including trend of profitability, operating cash flows, and
history of inter-company transactions etc.;

e Checking subsequent payment of inter-company loans,
its ability to meet its inter-company obligations;

e Recalculating interest portion on the balances of
inter-company transactions and recording thereof; and

« Finally, assessing the appropriateness and presentation
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards.

Our testing did not identify any major issues with regard to

inter-company balances and any indicators that would

trigger impairment or adjustment at the reporting date.

Refer to the note no. 15 and 25 of the financial

statements.

Loan and borrowings and Bank overdraft (“Loan”)

At reporting date, the position of Loan outstanding
was Tk. 170.4 crore for both the Company and
the Group. In other words, approximately 55% of
total liabilities are represented by loans for both
the Company and Group.

Evidently, the Company is using loan to operate
the business and also, to acquire non-current
assets. Loan, therefore, has been considered as
key audit area.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and
tested the operational effectiveness of the Company’s key
controls over the loans.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the followings:
e Understanding and reviewing the nature or types of loans;

* Reviewing the board meeting minutes on arrangements
of the loans;

e Obtaining the repayment schedules, loan statements and
facility offer letters to review terms, debt covenants, interest
rates and other conditions associated with the loans;

* Recalculating the interest related to loans;

e Checking the adjustments or repayments of loans
through bank statements as per repayment schedule;

e Observing whether there is any overdue payment
relevant to loans; and

* Finally, assessing the appropriateness and presentation
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards.

Our procedures above did not identify any issues with

regard to loans.

Refer to the note no. 21, 22 and 22(a) of the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

At year end the Company and the Group both
reported total revenue of Tk. 342 crore.

Revenue is recognised when the performance
obligation is satisfied by transferring the goods or
services to a customer, either at a point in time or

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls focusing on the followings:

e Segregation of duties in invoice creation and
modification;

* Approved price list and specified terms of trade in place;
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over time. Goods or services are “transferred”
when the customer obtains control of it. It is a
matter of concern that revenue may be misstated
due to recognition of sales transaction before
performance obligation being satisfied.

Furthermore, revenue is measured at net of trade
discounts, returns and allowances. Within a
number of the Group’s markets, the estimation of
discount recognised based on sales made during
the year is material and considered to be complex
and judgmental. Therefore, there is a matter of
consideration that revenue may be misstated as a
result of faulty estimations over discounts.

e Authorization of credit terms to customers;
< Timing of revenue recognition; and
e Calculation of discounts.

Our substantive procedures in relation to the revenue
recognition comprises the followings:

e Observing and evaluating whether proper segregation of
duties put in place;

e Examining samples of sales orders for evidence of
proper credit approval by the appropriate personnel
concerned and application controls for credit limits;

e Comparing prices and terms on samples of sales
invoices to the authorized price list and terms of trade
and also, examining application controls for authorized
prices and terms;

e Obtaining supporting documentation for sales
transactions recorded either side of year end as well as
credit notes issued after the year end date to determine
whether revenue was recognised in the correct period;

e Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s revenue
recognition accounting policies, including those relating
to discounts by comparison with applicable accounting
standard;

* Testing the effectiveness of the Group’s controls over
the calculation of discounts and appropriate timing of
revenue recognition;

« Critically assessing manual journals made to revenue to
identify unusual or irregular items; and

< Finally, assessing the appropriateness and presentation
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards.

Our testing did not identify any issues with regard to
revenue.

Refer to the note no. 27 and 27(a) of the financial statements.

Impact of COVID-19 on financial reporting

The effects of the COVID-19 pandemic have
significant global implications for economies,
markets and businesses, including volatility and
possible material uncertainties.

The operations of the Company itself has been
affected due to the restrictions brought about by
the COVID-19 pandemic. There is an increasing
probability that assertions and estimates related
to reporting may be materially impacted due to
impact of financial market volatility, deteriorating
credit or liquidity concerns, government
interventions, and disruptions in production and
supply chain, among other matters.

Detailed substantive tests were conducted in order to
mitigate the additional risks of material misstatements due
to the impact of COVID-19, which are the following:

e Testing the Company and Group’s ability to function as a
going concern by reviewing profitability, liquidity and
operations;

e Verification of property, plant and equipment and
evaluating whether any external or internal indications
exist which may trigger impairment;

e Checking the movement of inventory during the year,
and identifying slowing moving and obsolete inventory,
to determine if impairment is mandated;

e Checking financial assets to assess their recoverability,
and analyse whether impairment is required;

e Detailed analytical procedures on the financial
statements of the Company, including but not limited to
variance and common size analysis of balances;
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COVID-19 has brought about various challenges
for auditors, mainly in obtaining sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence. Due to the physical
restrictions in effect, evidence collected may not
be sufficient and appropriate as considered in
normal times. This will ultimately increase
chances of material misstatements to evade

Detailed ratio analysis of the balances in the financial
statements, for both current year and the comparative;
ratios analysed include but not limited to profitability,
liquidity, activity and cash flow ratios, among others;

Evaluate the appropriateness and sufficiency of the
Management’s explanations for the deviations amongst

balances and ratios of current year to that of the
comparative;

e Analyse the disclosures provided by the Company to
rationalize the impact of COVID-19 on financial
statements, and check their appropriateness and
sufficiency;

applied audit procedures.

e Check that all COVID-19 impacts are accurately reflected
in the financial statements, and disclosed in their
entirety of magnitude to the financial statements as a
whole; and

e Scrutinize that the impacts of events after the reporting
period, and ensure their true and fair reflection and
disclosure in the financial statements.

Our testing did not identify any issues with regards to
impact of COVID-19 on financial reporting.

Refer to the note no. 38.3 of the financial statements.

Other Matter

The Group comprises the parent, ACI Formulations Limited, and its subsidiary namely Neem Laboratories (Pvt.)
Ltd. The financial statements of subsidiary have been audited by Shiraz Khan Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants.
The auditor of subsidiary has expressed an unmodified opinion on the financial statements on 30 June 2020.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in the
Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and
other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group and the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s and the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group and the Company audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
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timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and relevant
notifications issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Group and the Company so
far as it appeared from our examination of these books;

c) the consolidated and the separate statements of financial position and statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income along with the annexed notes 1 to 39 dealt with by the report are in agreement with
the books of account, and

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Group's and the Company’s business.

(

Dhaka, 28 October 2020 A F Nesaruddin, FCA

Senior Partner
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants
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ACIl Formulations Limited
Statement of financial position

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019 1st July 2018
Restated™* Restated™*
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 1,902,607,959 1,944,656,528 1,793,502,725
Right of use assets 9 12,117,850 21,371,262 11,783,812
Investments 10 39,765,927 39,742,772 37,096,077
Non-current assets 1,954,491,736 2,005,770,562 1,842,382,614
Inventories 12 1,270,805,156 1,625,582,683 1,610,648,618
Trade receivables 13 1,574,240,361 1,713,472,029 1,350,154,816
Other receivables 14 40,677,696 41,728,563 27,351,264
Inter-company receivables 15 25,404,390 22,983,074 516,615,689
Advances, deposits and prepayments 16 79,424,510 79,814,120 92,822,350
Current tax assets 26 323,894,080 228,768,771 134,548,790
Cash and cash equivalents 17 248,676,354 297,708,034 262,039,838
Current assets 3,563,122,547 4,010,057,274 3,994,181,365
Total assets 5,517,614,283 6,015,827,836 5,836,563,979
Equity
Share Capital 18 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000
Revaluation reserve 1,136,392,931 1,136,392,931 1,136,392,931
Retained earnings 820,348,228 885,396,037 915,380,523
Total equity 2,406,741,159 2,471,788,968 2,501,773,454
Liabilities
Employee benefits 19 48,492,100 43,494,776 39,179,275
Lease liability 9 4,385,837 10,999,132 8,811,619
Deferred tax liabilities 20 24,686,212 48,918,292 59,324,164
Non-current liabilities 77,564,149 103,412,200 107,315,058
Bank overdrafts 21 76,793,453 128,758,666 163,497,501
Loans and borrowings 22 1,626,971,532 1,822,161,341 2,738,695,818
Lease liability- current portion 9 6,613,294 6,355,202 1,702,599
Trade payables 23 118,584,013 89,050,954 126,995,956
Other payables 24 340,242,198 248,013,100 196,583,593
Inter-company payables 25 864,104,485 1,146,287,405 -
Current liabilities 3,033,308,975 3,440,626,668 3,227,475,467
Total liabilities 3,110,873,124 3,544,038,868 3,334,790,525
Total equity and liabilities 5,517,614,283 6,015,827,836 5,836,563,979
Net asset value (NAV) per share 33 53.48 54.93 55.59

*See Note-6.1: The Group has applied IFRS 16 using retrospective approach. Therefore, comparative information have been restated.

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

20

i

Managing Director

Dhaka, 28 October 2020
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ACI Formulations Limited
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended For the year ended

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Restated>

Revenue 27 3,422,446,474 4,025,285,890

Cost of sales 28 (2,357,284,560) (2,814,616,591)

Gross profit 1,065,161,914 1,210,669,299

Other income 29 4,668,779 5,109,758
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 30 (719,940,721) (798,955,841)
Operating profit 349,889,972 416,823,216
Finance costs, net 31 (217,715,145) (227,010,584)
Profit before contribution to WPPF 132,174,827 189,812,632
Contribution to WPPF (6,608,741) (9,553,187)
Profit before tax 125,566,086 180,259,445

Income tax expense 32

Current tax

(57,345,975)

(63,149,803)

Deferred tax income/(expense) 24,232,080 10,405,872

(33,113,895) (52,743,931)

Profit after tax 92,452,191 127,515,514

Other comprehensive income = -

Total comprehensive income 92,452,191 127,515,514
Earnings per share 33

Basic earnings per share 2.05 2.83

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Managing Director Director Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

L (2

A F Nesaruddin, FCA
Senior Partner
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka, 28 October 2020
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ACI Formulations Limited
Statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Share Revaluation Retained Total

In Taka capital reserve earnings
Balance at 1 July 2019 450,000,000 1,136,392,931 885,396,037 2,471,788,968
Total comprehensive income
Profit after tax - - 92,452,191 92,452,191
Other comprehensive income net of tax - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 92,452,191 92,452,191
Transactions with owners of the company
Contributions and distributions
Final dividend paid for the year 2018-19 - - (157,500,000) (157,500,000)
Total transactions with owners of the company - - (157,500,000) (157,500,000)
Transactions recognised directly in equity
Realisation of revaluation surplus - - - -
Total transactions recognised directly in equity - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2020 450,000,000 1,136,392,931 820,348,228 2,406,741,159

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Share Revaluation Retained Total

In Taka capital reserve earnings
Balance at 1 July 2018 as previously reported 450,000,000 1,136,392,931 915,939,875 2,502,332,806
Impact of initial application of IFRS 16 - - (559,352) (559,352)
Restated balance at 1 July 2018 450,000,000 1,136,392,931 915,380,523 2,501,773,454
Total comprehensive income
Profit after tax - - 127,515,514 127,515,514
Other comprehensive income net of tax - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 127,515,514 127,515,514
Transactions with owners of the company
Contributions and distributions
Final dividend paid for the year 2017-18 - - (157,500,000) (157,500,000)
Total transactions with owners of the company - - (157,500,000) (157,500,000)
Transactions recognised directly in equity
Realisation of revaluation surplus - - - -
Total transactions recognised directly in equity - - - -
Restated balance at 30 June 2019 450,000,000 1,136,392,931 885,396,037 2,471,788,968

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ACIl Formulations Limited
Statement of cash flows

For the year ended

For the year ended

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Restated™*

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers and others 3,530,247,009 3,634,301,498
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (2,486,366,330) (3,481,837,482)
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 1,043,880,679 152,464,016
Paid to WPPF (9,553,187) (8,594,760)
Interest paid (213,472,156) (256,724,357)
Income tax paid (152,471,284) (157,369,784)
(375,496,627) (422,688,901)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities™ 17.3 668,384,052 (270,224,885)

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Investment

(23,622,434)
(23,155)

(218,972,841)
(2,646,695)

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

(23,645,589)

(221,619,536)

Cash flows from financing activities
Inter-company debts received/(paid)

Proceeds from loans and borrowings

(283,636,486)
(195,189,810)

1,639,920,020
(916,534,477)

Payment for lease obligation (6,355,203) (4,652,452)
Dividends paid (156,729,487) (156,649,902)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (641,910,986) 562,083,189
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,827,477 70,238,768
Opening cash and cash equivalents 168,949,368 98,542,337
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 106,056 168,263
Cash and cash equivalents at reporting date 171,882,901 168,949,368
Closing balance represents
Cash and cash equivalents 17 248,676,354 297,708,034
Bank overdraft 21 (76,793,453) (128,758,666)
171,882,901 168,949,368
Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS) 33 14.85 (6.00)

* See Note 17.3 for reconciliation of net operating cash flow.

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ACI Formulations Limited
Consolidated statement of financial position

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019 1st July 2018
Assets Restated™* Restated™*
Property, plant and equipment 8(a) 1,903,985,541 1,946,404,129 1,795,746,344
Right of use assets 9(a) 12,117,850 21,371,262 11,783,812
Investments 10(a) 35,817,593 35,794,438 33,147,743
Intangible assets 11 5,147,792 5,147,792 5,147,792
Non-current assets 1,957,068,776 2,008,717,621 1,845,825,691
Inventories 12(a) 1,270,805,156 1,641,860,723 1,629,233,566
Trade receivables 13(a) 1,575,245,535 1,718,346,712 1,360,567,380
Other receivables 14 40,619,138 41,673,512 26,004,265
Inter-company receivable 15(a) 17,862,732 3,658,384 490,417,631
Advances, deposits and prepayments 16(a) 80,121,123 81,588,072 94,351,225
Current tax assets 26(a) 323,757,710 228,725,226 134,123,783
Cash and cash equivalents 17(a) 249,368,841 298,654,227 262,105,286
Current assets 3,557,780,235 4,014,506,856 3,996,803,136
Total assets 5,514,849,011 6,023,224,477 5,842,628,827
Equity

Share Capital 18 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000
Revaluation reserve 1,136,392,931 1,136,392,931 1,136,392,931
Retained earnings 815,586,163 880,352,574 908,469,896
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company 2,401,979,094 2,466,745,505 2,494,862,827
Non controlling interest (121,672) (127,415) (165,520)

Total equity 2,401,857,422 2,466,618,090 2,494,697,307
Liabilities

Employee benefits 19 48,492,100 43,494,776 39,179,275
Lease liability 9(a) 4,385,837 10,999,132 8,811,619
Deferred tax liabilities 20(a) 24,594,529 48,621,243 58,340,262
Non-current liabilities 77,472,466 103,115,151 106,331,156
Bank overdrafts 21 76,793,453 128,758,666 163,497,501
Loans and borrowings 22(a) 1,626,971,532 1,825,021,499 2,746,378,692
Lease liability- current portion 9(a) 6,613,294 6,355,202 1,702,599
Trade payables 23(a) 119,962,073 97,424,470 132,432,664
Other payables 24(a) 341,074,286 249,643,994 197,588,908
Inter-company payables 25 864,104,485 1,146,287,405 -

Current liabilities

3,035,519,123

3,453,491,236

3,241,600,364

Total liabilities

3,112,991,589

3,556,606,387

3,347,931,520

Total equity and liabilities

5,514,849,011

6,023,224,477

5,842,628,827

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share 33(a)

53.38

54.82

55.44

*See Note-6.1: The Group has applied IFRS 16 using retrospective approach. Therefore, comparative information have been restated.
The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Managing Director Director Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

L (%

A F Nesaruddin, FCA
Senior Partner
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka, 28 October 2020
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ACI Formulations Limited
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended For the year ended

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Restated™
Revenue 27(a) 3,424,043,566 4,052,370,211
Cost of sales 28(a) (2,357,284,558) (2,837,236,215)
Gross profit 1,066,759,008 1,215,133,996
Other income 29 4,668,779 5,109,758
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 30(a) (720,517,624) (800,354,334)
Operating profit 350,910,163 419,889,420
Finance costs, net 31(a) (218,083,120) (227,322,160)
Profit before contribution to WPPF 132,827,043 192,567,260
Contribution to WPPF (6,608,741) (9,553,187)
Profit before tax 126,218,302 183,014,073

Income tax expense: 32(a)
Current tax (57,505,684) (63,312,309)
Deferred tax income/(expense) 24,026,714 9,719,019
(33,478,970) (53,593,290)
Profit after tax 92,739,332 129,420,783
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 92,739,332 129,420,783

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company 92,733,589 129,382,678
Non-controlling interest 5,743 38,105
92,739,332 129,420,783

Earnings per share 33(a)
Basic earnings per share 2.06 2.88

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Managing Director
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Director

Company Secretary
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Senior Partner
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ACIl Formulations Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flows

In Taka Note

30 June 2020

For the year ended For the year ended

30 June 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees

3,535,713,609

(2,506,277,549)

Restated™*

3,666,923,700

(3,507,900,678)

Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities
Payment for WPPF
Interest paid

Income tax paid

1,029,436,060
(9,553,187)
(213,840,131)
(152,538,168)

159,023,022

(8,594,760)
(257,035,934)
(157,913,752)

(375,931,486)

(423,544,446)

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities™ 17.3(a)

653,504,574

(264,521,424)

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Investment

(23,622,435)
(23,155)

(218,972,841)
(2,646,695)

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

(23,645,590)

(221,619,536)

Cash flows from financing activities
Inter-company debts received/(paid)

Proceeds from loans and borrowings

(266,150,555)
(198,049,968)

1,639,920,020
(921,357,193)

Payment for lease obligation (6,355,203) (4,652,452)
Dividends paid (156,729,487) (156,649,902)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (627,285,213) 557,260,473
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,573,771 71,119,513
Opening Cash and cash equivalents 169,895,561 98,607,785
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 106,056 168,263
Closing cash and cash equivalents at reporting date 172,575,388 169,895,561
Closing balance represents
Cash and cash equivalents 17(a) 249,368,841 298,654,227
Bank overdraft 21 (76,793,453) (128,758,666)
172,575,388 169,895,561
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (NOCFPS) 33(a) 14.52 (5.88)

* See Note 17.3(a) for reconciliation of net operating cash flow.

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

ACI Formulations Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as at and for the year ended 30 June 2020

Reporting entity

Company profile

ACl Formulations Limited (the "Company") is a company incorporated in Bangladesh. It was
incorporated as a private limited company on 29 October 1995 and converted to a public limited
company on 4 May 2005. The Company was listed with both Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and
Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) on 30 October 2008. The registered office of the Company is
at 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208, Bangladesh. The Company went into commercial
operations on 1 July 1998. Advanced Chemical Industries Limited (ACI Limited) incorporated in
Bangladesh is the immediate as well as ultimate parent of the Company. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 30 June 2020 comprise the Company's and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group" and individually as "Group entities™) interest in
controlled entities.

Nature of business

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and marketing of a number of agrochemical
and consumer products.

e Agrochemical products (Crop Care & Public Health) are directly marketed by the Company with the
use of depot facilities of ACI Limited.

e Some products of S. C. Johnson & Son, Inc., are manufactured by the Company under contract
which is distributed by ACI Limited.

e Paint products are manufactured and marketed by the Company under license from Akzo Nobel
N.V., and distributed with logistics support from ACI Limited.

Description of subsidiary

The Company acquired 98% shares of Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd. (the "Subsidiary™). The initial
effective date of acquisition was 28 February 2014. Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd is engaged in
manufacturing and marketing of herbal products in a small scale.

Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd. was not in manufacturing operations during the reporting period.
However, the Subsidiary continues to generate revenue through royalty fees based on the agreement
with ACI Limited effective from 01 July 2019 for a tenure of 5 years; the latter currently being engaged
in the manufacturing of products under the Neem brand name. Since the Subsidiary showed
profitability during the year, its ability to operate as a going concern is not at risk.

Basis of accounting

Statement of compliance

The separate financial statements as well as consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IASs), International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other
applicable laws and regulations.

Date of authorisation

The audited consolidated financial statements as well as separate financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2020 were authorised by the Board of Directors on 28 October 2020 for publication.
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2.3

4.1

4.2

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical
cost basis except for certain assets, which are stated either at revalued amount or fair market value as
explained in the accompanying notes.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT), which is the functional
and presentation currency of the Group. The amounts in these financial statements have been rounded
off to the nearest Taka, unless otherwise indicated. In some instances the total may not match with the
sum of individual balance due to rounding off.

Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these separate and consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment for the year ended 30 June 2020 is included in the following notes:

Note - 8 & 8(a) Property, plant and equipment

Note - 9 & 9(a) Leases

Note - 12 & 12(a) Inventories

Note - 13 & 13(a) Trade receivables

Note - 14 Other receivables

Note - 15 & 15(a) Inter-company receivables

Note - 19 Employee benefits

Note - 20 & 20(a) Deferred tax liabilities

Note - 26 & 26(a) Current tax liabilities/(assets)

Note - 35 Commitment and contingencies
Fair value

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as far
as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

e |evel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

® level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

® level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability are categorised in different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
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The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

5 Reporting period

The financial period of the Company covers one year from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 and is being
followed consistently.

6 Significant accounting policies

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

Set out below is an index of the significant accounting policies, the details of which are available on the
current and following pages:

(a) Current versus non-current classification
(b) Offsetting

(c) Basis of consolidation

(d) Revenue from contract with customers
(e) Foreign currency transactions

(f) Employee benefits

(g) Finance income and finance costs

(h) Income tax

(i) Investment

(J) Inventories

(k) Property, plant and equipment

(I) Intangible assets

(m) Leases

(n) Financial instruments

(0) Share capital

(p) Impairment

(q) Operating leases

(r) Provisions

(s) Going concern

(t) Contingencies

(u) Statement of cash flows

(v) Earnings per share (EPS)

(w) Events after the reporting period

(x) Dividends

(y) Materiality and aggregation

(z) Application of new standards

(a) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/
non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:

)] expected to be realised in normal operating cycle, or

ii)  due to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iii)  held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

iv) used or exchanged to settle a liability within twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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A liability is current when it is:
)] expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
i) due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iii)  held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
iv) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Offsetting

The Group reports separately both assets and liabilities, and income and expenses, unless required by
an applicable accounting standard or offsetting reflects the substance of the transaction and such
offsetting is permitted by applicable accounting standard.

Cash receipts and payments on behalf of customers when the cash flows reflect the activities of the
customer rather than those of the entity and cash receipts and payments for items in which the
turnover is quick, the amounts are large, and the maturities are short are presented net in the
statement of cash flows.

Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights presently exercisable are taken into
account. The financial statements of subsidiaries have been included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that it ceases. The accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted
by the Company.

(ii) Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interest (NCI) is the equity interest in a subsidiary not attributable to
ACI Formulations Limited. NCI is measured at subsidiaries' proportionate share of identifiable
net asset.

(iii) Loss of control

When the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets (including any
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, any related NCI and other components of the equity
at their carrying amount at the date when control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised
in the profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when
control is lost.

(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2019-2020 | Page 63



(@

O

®

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Group
recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer. The following table
provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in
contracts with customers:

Type of product or service Revenue recognition under IFRS 15

Sale of goods or services | Prescribed criteria for satisfying performance obligation. If none of the

Revenue is recognized when or as a performance obligation is satisfied by
transferring a good or service to a customer, either at a point in time or
over time. A good or service is ‘transferred’ when or as the customer
obtains control of it. Customers obtain control of goods at point of delivery
or over time.

The entity assesses whether it transfers control over time by following

criteria is met then the entity recognizes revenue at point of time at which
it transfers control of the goods to the customer.

Revenue is measured net of value added tax, trade discount, returns and
allowances (if any). In case of cash delivery, revenue is recognised when
delivery is made and cash is received by the Group.

Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are prepared in BDT, which is the Company's functional currency. Transactions
in foreign currencies are recorded in the books at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of such
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the date of financial position are
translated into BDT at the exchange rate prevailing at that date, with foreign currency differences being
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Employee benefits

0]

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans (provident fund)

The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme where employees contribute 8% of
their basic salary with equal contribution by the Company. The provident fund is being considered
as defined contribution plan being managed by a Board of Trustees.

The Company recognises contribution to defined contribution plan as an expense when an
employee has rendered related services in exchange for such contribution. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is
available.
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Defined benefit plans (gratuity)

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, provision in respect of which is made
annually covering all its permanent eligible employees. The Employees' Gratuity Fund is being
considered as defined benefit plan.

Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which amounts to be paid as
retirement benefits are determined by reference to employees' earnings and/or year of services.
The rate used to discount post employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to the
rate stated in the actuarial report. Actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme has been made as on 30
June 2020 by independent actuarial valuer to assess the adequacy of the liabilities provided for
the schemes, which concluded that provision accounted for in the Statement of financial position
is sufficient.

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

The Company operates funds for workers as 'Workers' Profit Participation Fund' and 5% of the
profit before charging such expense have been transferred to this fund as per section 234 of the
Labour Act 2006 (amended in 2013).

Finance income and finance costs

The Group's finance income and finance costs include:

interest income;

interest expense;

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in OCI (Other Comprehensive Income).

0]

(i)

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid that
reflects uncertainty related to income tax, if any. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. The applicable tax rates for the Company is currently 25%.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

- temporary difference related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improve.

The Group’s existing accounting policy for uncertain income tax treatments is consistent with the
requirements in IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, which became effective on 1
January 2019.

Investment

In separate financial statements of the Company, investment in subsidiaries has been carried at cost as
per IAS 27: Separate Financial Statements. All other investments have been categorised in accordance
with IFRS 9.

Investment in subsidiaries has been accounted for as per IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements.
The investment is eliminated in full against the equity of acquired subsidiary, which is measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition as per IFRS 3: Business Combinations.

Inventories

Inventories except materials in transit are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of inventories is based on the weighted average method, and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress,
cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operation capacity.

Allowance for inventory is periodically recognised mainly on the basis of failure in quality control
testing, net realisable value, non compliance testing, near to expiry etc. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses.

Material in transit represents the cost incurred up to the date of the statement of financial position for
the items that were not received till to the date of the statement of financial position. Inventory losses
and abnormal losses are recognised as expenses.

Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or revaluation less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The items of property, plant and equipment
were revalued in the year 2004, 2010 and 2015 by a firm of professional valuers on the basis of
applicable methods including market value method, premise on the accompanying narrative
information and valuation methodology. Capital work-in-progress represents the cost incurred for
acquisition and/or construction of items of property, plant and equipment that were not ready for
use at the end of 30 June 2020 and these are stated at cost.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of asset. The cost of self
constructed asset includes the cost of material and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use.
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Subsequent costs

The cost of replacement or upgradation of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised
in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance expense are charged to income statement as incurred.

Depreciation

All items of property, plant and equipment have been depreciated on straight line basis over the
estimated useful life of each item of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation on additions is
charged in full when the asset becomes available for use. Depreciation is charged at the rates
varying from 2.5% to 20% depending on the estimated useful lives of assets. No depreciation is
charged for land and capital work in progress, as land has unlimited useful life and CWIP has not
yet been placed in service.

The revalued items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated based on their revalued
amount at the date of revaluation over their remaining estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives of initially recognised property, plant and equipment are as follows:

In Year 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Building 40 40
Plant and machinery 10 10
Equipment and machinery 5-10 5-10
Electrical and other office appliances 5-10 5-10
Furniture and fixture 10 10
Motor vehicles 5 5

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate. No revision in respect of items of property, plant and equipment was
done for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are included in the cost of that asset as per IAS 23: Borrowing cost. The capitalisation
rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs of Group's borrowings for this purpose and the
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the asset is ready for intended use.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets
(considered as disclosed separately under respective accounting standards), are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

However, no such conditions that might be suggestive of a heightened risk of impairment of
assets existed at the reporting date.

Retirement and disposals

An asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
and subsequent disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised as gain or loss from disposal of asset in profit or loss. When revalued assets are
disposed of, the amounts included in the revaluation surplus are transferred to retained earnings.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. During the year no external or internal indication was found which
may trigger impairment.
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Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the inception of a contract
and measured in accordance with IFRS 16. The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, or the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost.

Payments associated with all short-term leases (with a lease term of 12 months or less) and certain
leases of all low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise of investments in shares and term deposit, trade receivable,
inter-company receivable, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, inter-company
payables, other payables, bank overdraft, share capital and interest-bearing borrowings.

(i) Financial assets

The Group initially recognises receivables and deposits issued on the date when they originate. All
other financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, when the entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred,
or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not retain control over the transferred asset.

The Group's financial assets comprise trade receivable, intercompany receivable, other
receivables, refundable deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

Trade, inter-company and other receivables
Trade, inter-company and other receivables are initially recognised at the transaction price. These

assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowance for impairment loss of receivables using expected credit loss model.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and all call deposits with original maturities of
three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose only of the statement of cash flows.

Investment in term deposit

The Group has the positive intent and ability to hold term deposit to collect contractual cash flows,
and as such financial assets are classified as amortised cost (original classification under IAS 39
was held to maturity).

(ii) Financial liabilities
The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on the transaction date at which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the liability. The Group recognises such financial
liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are certain and the settlement of
which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources embodying economic benefits.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired.

The Group's financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and interest - bearing borrowings.
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The Group recognises such financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past
events are certain and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity
of resources embodying economic benefits.

(iii) Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are
recognised as a deduction from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction
are accounted for in accordance with IAS 12: Income Taxes.

Impairment

(i) Financial assets

Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

- default or delinquency by a debtor;

- restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;
- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers; or

- observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a
group of financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a
collective level. All individually significant assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those
found not to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred
but not yet individually identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively
assessed for impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together assets with
similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical information on the timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic and
credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested
by historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated using expected credit loss model as prescribed in IFRS 9.
Impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the
Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

(i) Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
biological costs, inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
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For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGUs (Cash Generating Units).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Operating leases

All leases other than those that meet the definition of finance lease are treated as operating lease and
are not recognised in the statement of financial position. Payments made under operating leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight line basis over
the term of the lease.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits are required to
settle the obligation, the provision are reversed.

Going concern

The Group has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason
the management continues to adopt going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. The
current resources of the Company provide sufficient funds to meet the present requirements of its
existing business.

Contingencies

(i) Contingent liability
Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the entity; or a present obligation that arises from past events but
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

The Group discloses contingent liability in the financial statements. A provision is recognised in the
period in which the recognition criteria of provision is met.

(ii) Contingent asset
Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity.

The Group does not recognise contingent asset. Only when the realisation of the related economic
benefits are visually certain should recognition take place provided that it can be measured
reliably because, at that point, the asset is no longer contingent.
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Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities are presented under direct method as per IAS 7: Statement of
cash flows.

Earnings per share (EPS)

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company / Group by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, if any. However, dilution of EPS is not applicable for these financial statements as
there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the year ended 30 June 2020.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Group's position at the
reporting date or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in
the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes when material.

Dividends

Final dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group's shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting, while interim dividend distributions are recognised in the period in which the
dividends are declared and paid.

Materiality and aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.

Application of new standards

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 eliminates the current operating/financing lease dual accounting model for leases.
Instead, there is a single, on-balance sheet accounting model, similar to current finance lease
accounting. Issued in January 2016, the new IFRS will replace the existing guidance in IAS 17
Leases. IFRS 16 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Early adoption is permitted if IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is also adopted.

6.1 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied IFRS 16 which has become initially applicable for the Group from 1 July
2019. As a result, the group has changed its accounting policies for lease contracts. The Group
has applied IFRS 16 using retrospective approach. Therefore, comparative information has been
restated, and a third Statement of Financial Position as at the beginning of the preceding period,
when the Group applied the accounting policy retrospectively has been presented as per the
requirements of paragraph 40A of IAS 1.

The following table summarise the impacts of adopting IFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated
financial statements:

Annual Report 2019-2020 | Page 71



i. Consolidated statement of financial position

1 July 2018 Impact of initial application of IFRS 16

In Taka As previously reported Adjustments As restated
Right-of-use assets (for lease contracts) - 11,783,812 11,783,812
Advance, deposits and prepayments 96,366,622 (2,015,397) 94,351,225
Retained Earnings 909,029,248 (559,352) 908,469,896
Deferred tax liabilities 58,526,713 (186,451) 58,340,262
Lease liabilities - 10,514,218 10,514,218
30 June 2019 Impact of initial application of IFRS 16

In Taka As previously reported Adjustments As restated
Right-of-use assets (for lease contracts) - 21,371,262 21,371,262
Advance, deposits and prepayments 87,601,920 (6,013,848) 81,588,072
Retained Earnings 881,850,264 (1,497,689) 880,352,575
Deferred tax liabilities 49,120,473 (499,230) 48,621,243
Lease liabilities - 17,354,334 17,354,334

ii. Consolidated statement of profit or loss

For the year ended 30 June 2019 Impact of initial application of IFRS 16

In Taka As previously reported Adjustments As restated
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses (801,352,931) 998,597 (800,354,334)
Net finance costs (225,072,447) (2,249,713) (227,322,160)
Income tax expense (53,906,068) 312,778 (53,593,290)
Profit for the period 130,359,121 (938,338) 129,420,783

ili. Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2019 Impact of initial application of IFRS 16

In Taka As previously reported Adjustments As restated

Net cash from / (used in) operating activities (269,173,876) 4,652,452 (264,521,424)

Net cash from financing activities 561,912,925 (4,652,452) 557,260,473
7 Operating segments

(i) Basis for segmentation

The Group has the following four strategic business units, which are reportable segments. These
business units offer different products and services, and are managed separately because they require
different technology and marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the Group's
CEO reviews internal management reports at least on quarterly basis.

Crop Care and Public Health (CC & PH)  To manufacture and sell crop care and public health products

Mosquito coil (M. Coil) To manufacture and sell mosquito coil products
Aerosol To manufacture and sell aerosol and air freshener products
Paint To manufacture and sell paint products
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9(a)

10

Leases

The Group has rent agreements for depots, warehouses, outlets, and other uses for the business. Rent
agreements having non-cancellable (either by agreement or in substance) tenor of 12 months or more
have been charged through right of use assets. Short term rent agreements have been charged
directly as expense. Information about such leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below:

i. Right-of-use assets

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Right-of-use assets 12,117,850 21,371,262
Additions during the year - 9,587,450

ii. Lease liability

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Non-current portion of lease liability 4,385,837 10,999,132
Current portion of lease liability 6,613,294 6,355,202

10,999,131 17,354,334

iii. Reconciliation of rent expense

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Amount recognised in profit or loss

Charge on right-of-use rent agreements 30 9,253,412 8,373,717
Interest on lease liabilities 31 1,747,827 2,249,713
Expense for short term rents 30 24,636,146 23,119,602
Amount recognised in profit or loss under IFRS 16 35,637,385 33,743,032
Rent paid (excluding IFRS 16 adjustment) 35,493,174 32,491,916

Consolidated leases

i. Right-of-use assets

In Taka

30 June 2020

30 June 2019

Right-of-use assets

12,117,850

21,371,262

ii. Lease liability

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Non-current portion of lease liability 4,385,837 10,999,132
Current portion of lease liability 6,613,294 6,355,202
10,999,131 17,354,334
Investments
In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Investment in subsidiary 10.1 3,948,334 3,948,334
Investment in FDR 10.2 35,742,593 35,719,438
Investment in shares of ACI Motors Limited 75,000 75,000
39,765,927 39,742,772

ACI Motors Limited is a subsidiary of ACI Limited and consolidated by ACI Limited.
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10.1 Investment in subsidiary

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Face value  Called and

Number of per paid up Share-
shares share capital per share holding Value Value
Taka Taka % Taka Taka
Name of subsidiary
Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd 4900 100 100 98 3,948,334 3,948,334
Total investment in subsidiary 3,948,334 3,948,334

10.2 Investment in FDR includes amounting to Taka 2,022,500 which is kept as lien against service
received from Titas Gas Transmission and Distribution Co. Limited. Therefore, the Company has no
intention to encash the said amount and recorded as long term investment.

10(a) Consolidated investments

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Investment in FDR 10.2 35,742,593 35,719,438
Investment in shares of ACI Motors Limited 75,000 75,000

35,817,593 35,794,438
11 Intangible assets

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Goodwill on acquisition:

Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd 5,147,792 5,147,792
5,147,792 5,147,792
12 Inventories

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Raw and packing materials 535,478,905 823,197,299
Work in process 3,802,464 -
Finished goods 588,585,221 724,125,316
Goods in transit 143,045,346 66,925,520
Other inventories (engineering stores and diesel) 25,565,814 25,972,297

(25,672,594)
1,270,805,156

(14,637,749)
1,625,582,683

Allowance for slow-moving inventory

In view of innumerable items of inventories and diversified quantities, inventories are presented group-wise.

12(a) Consolidated inventories

In Taka

30 June 2020

30 June 2019

Raw and packing materials

Work in process

Finished goods

Goods in transit

Other inventories (engineering stores and diesel)
Allowance for slow-moving inventory

535,478,905
3,802,464
588,861,512
143,045,346
25,565,814

(25,948,885)

837,460,655

726,307,088
67,704,849
25,972,297

(15,584,166)

1,270,805,156

1,641,860,723
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13 Trade receivables

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Dues over Dues below
In Taka 6 months 6 months Total Total
Related party - - - -
Other than related parties 424,051,989 1,327,222,679 1,751,274,668 1,856,388,973
1,751,274,668 1,856,388,973
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (177,034,307) (142,916,944)

1,574,240,361 1,713,472,029

In view of innumerable number of debtors, it is not practicable to disclose the amount of receivable against each
specific debtors.

13(a)Consolidated trade receivables

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Dues over Dues below
In Taka 6 months 6 months Total Total
Related parties - - - -
Other than related parties 424,051,989 1,328,227,853 1,752,279,842 1,861,263,656
1,752,279,842 1,861,263,656
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (177,034,307) (142,916,944)

1,575,245,535 1,718,346,712

14 Other receivables

Other receivables represent receivable on accounts of promotional expense to be reimbursed by
Akzo Nobel and interest income from FDR.

15 Inter-company receivables

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd 25,404,390 22,983,074
25,404,390 22,983,074

Inter-company receivable is operated under normal course of business maintaining a common policy
of charging interest to ensure efficient fund management and optimize effective borrowing cost at
group level.

15(a) Consolidated inter-company receivables

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
ACI Limited 17,862,732 3,658,384
17,862,732 3,658,384
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16

16(a) Consolidated advances, deposits and prepayments

17

17.1

Advances, deposits and prepayments

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Advances:
Staffs 218,717 590,894
Supplier and others 38,489,010 34,971,395
VAT current account 18,776,372 9,541,496
57,484,099 45,103,785
Deposits:
Security deposits 12,712,373 11,704,373
Bank guarantee margin 4,784,073 18,092,893
17,496,446 29,797,266
Prepayments:
Prepaid expenses 4,443,965 4,913,069
4,443,965 4,913,069
79,424,510 79,814,120

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Advances:
Staffs 218,717 590,894
Suppliers & others 39,185,623 35,878,788
VAT current account 18,776,372 10,408,055
58,180,712 46,877,737
Deposits:
Security deposits 12,712,373 11,704,373
Bank guarantee margin 4,784,073 18,092,893
17,496,446 29,797,266
Prepayments:
Prepaid expenses 4,443,965 4,913,069
4,443,965 4,913,069
80,121,123 81,588,072

Cash and cash equivalents

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Cash in hand 5,351,521 4,163,463
Collection in hand 17.1 85,798,144 118,215,885
Cash at bank 17.2 157,526,689 175,328,686

248,676,354 297,708,034

This represents cash in hand at depots which was collected against cash sales and payment

instruments collected against credit sales at the end of the reporting period.
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17.2

17.3

Cash at Bank

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Standard Chartered Bank 30,305,880 24,536,934
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC) 11,857,488 9,731,841
AB Bank Limited 42,292,674 58,125,349
Agrani Bank Limited 3,026,114 1,158,203
Janata Bank Limited 17,300,030 9,730,300
Sonali Bank Limited 968,697 5,043,841
Bank Asia Limited 950 1,640
BRAC Bank Limited 14,712,411 39,140,423
ONE Bank Limited 10,535,672 3,061,891
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 731,306 42,197
The City Bank Limited 164,645 20,000
Prime Bank Limited 22,937,996 22,916,013
Pubali Bank Limited 828,261 157,013
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited 1,794,495 1,663,041
Mercantile Bank Limited 70,070 -

157,526,689 175,328,686

Reconciliation of net operating cash flow

In Taka

30 June 2020

30 June 2019

Profit after tax 92,452,191 127,515,514
Adjustment for:

- Depreciation and amortization 65,671,003 67,843,104
- Bad debts and inventory loss/(recovery) 46,060,951 34,884,757
- Net finance cost 217,715,145 224,760,871
- Tax expense 33,113,895 53,056,710
- Contribution to WPPF 6,608,742 9,553,187
Changes in:

- Inventories 343,742,683 (17,041,885)
- Trade and other receivables 104,288,679 (409,547,560)
- Advances, deposit and prepayments 3,143,607 9,009,780
- Trade and other payables, employment benefits' 131,083,783 52,429,538
Cash generating from operating activities 1,043,880,679 152,464,016
Paid to WPPF (9,553,187) (8,594,760)

Interest paid
Income tax paid

(213,472,156)
(152,471,284)

(256,724,357)
(157,369,784)

Net cash from operating activities

668,384,052

(270,224,885)

17(a) Consolidated cash and cash equivalents

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Cash in hand 5,437,426 4,249,368
Collection in hand 17.1 85,798,144 118,215,885
Cash at bank 17.2(a) 158,133,271 176,188,974

249,368,841 298,654,227
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17.2(a) Consolidated Cash at Bank

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Standard Chartered Bank 30,305,880 24,536,934
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC) 11,857,488 9,731,841
AB Bank Limited 42,292,674 58,125,349
Agrani Bank Limited 3,026,114 1,158,203
Janata Bank Limited 17,300,030 9,730,300
Sonali Bank Limited 968,697 5,043,841
Bank Asia Limited 950 1,640
BRAC Bank Limited 14,712,411 39,140,423
ONE Bank Limited 10,535,672 3,061,891
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 731,306 42,197
The City Bank Limited 164,645 20,000
Prime Bank 22,937,996 22,916,013
Pubali Bank Limited 828,261 157,013
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited 2,401,077 2,523,329
Mercantile Bank Limited 70,070 -

158,133,271 176,188,974

17.3(a) Reconciliation of consolidated net operating cash flow

18

In Taka

30 June 2020

30 June 2019

Profit after tax 92,739,332 129,420,783
Adjustment for:

- Depreciation and amortization 66,041,022 68,339,121
- Bad debts and inventory loss/(recovery) 45,114,534 35,467,184
- Net finance cost 218,083,120 227,322,160
- Tax expense 33,478,970 53,593,290
- Contribution to WPPF 6,608,742 9,553,187
Changes in:

- Inventories 330,772,774 (15,317,404)
- Trade and other receivables 108,161,698 (403,954,626)
- Advances, deposit and prepayments 4,220,947 8,764,702
- Trade and other payables, employment benefits' 124,214,921 45,834,625
Cash generating from operating activities 1,029,436,060 159,023,022
Paid to WPPF (9,553,187) (8,594,760)

Interest paid
Income tax paid

(213,840,131)
(152,538,168)

(257,035,934)
(157,913,752)

Net cash from operating activities

653,504,574

(264,521,424)

Share capital

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Ordinary shares (6,600,000 shares of Tk 10 each) 66,000,000 66,000,000
Bonus shares (32,500,000 shares of Tk. 10 each) 325,000,000 325,000,000
Right shares (5,900,000 shares of Tk. 10 each) 59,000,000 59,000,000
In issue at reporting date - fully paid 450,000,000 450,000,000
Authorised - par value Tk. 10 500,000,000 500,000,000
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18.1

18.2

19

20

Shareholding position

Number of shares

Percentage of holding

Value (Taka)

30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Directors and sponsors 29,708,205 29,708,205 66.02% 66.02% 297,082,050 297,082,050
Institutions 12,284,196 12,256,911 27.30% 27.24% 122,841,960 122,569,110
General shareholders 3,007,599 3,034,884 6.68% 6.74% 30,075,990 30,348,840

45,000,000 45,000,000 100.00% 100.00% 450,000,000 450,000,000

Share owning schedule

Number of shareholders

Number of shares

Percentage of holding

Shareholder's range

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Less than 500 2,597 2,454 425,181 404,554 0.94% 0.90%
501 to 5000 shares 1,026 952 1,557,404 1,432,732 3.46% 3.17%
5001 to 10,000 shares 75 65 533,923 452,351 1.19% 1.01%
10,001 to 20,000 shares 29 29 440,874 440,263 0.98% 0.98%
20,001 to 30,000 shares 16 15 411,853 372,442 0.92% 0.83%
30,001 to 40,000 shares 10 8 352,482 275,691 0.78% 0.61%
40,001 to 50,000 shares 7 9 326,668 407,579 0.73% 0.91%
50,001 to 100,000 shares 12 599,196 894,418 1.33% 1.99%
100,001 to 1,000,000 shares 14 14 4,123,155 4,090,706 9.16% 9.09%
Over 1,000,000 shares 4 4 36,229,264 36,229,264 80.51% 80.51%
3,786 3,562 45,000,000 45,000,000 100.00% 100.00%
Employee benefits
In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Defined benefit obligation 19.1 36,432,189 32,394,865
Other employee benefits 12,059,911 11,099,911
48,492,100 43,494,776
19.1 Defined benefit obligation
In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Opening balance 32,394,865 29,519,364
Service cost 4,565,105 5,438,826
Benefits paid (527,781) (2,563,325)
Closing balance 36,432,189 32,394,865
Deferred tax liabilities
In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Opening balance 48,918,292 59,324,164
Deferred tax (income) for the year 32 (24,232,080) (10,405,872)
Closing balance 24,686,212 48,918,292
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20(a) Consolidated deferred tax liabilities

21

Taxable/
Carrying (deductible) Deferred tax
amount on temporary liabilities/

In Taka reporting date  Tax base difference (assets)

At 30 June 2020

Land 1,535,862,484 - 1,535,862,484 38,847,147
Property, plant and equipment (other than land) 364,440,388 179,803,906 184,636,482 46,159,121
Allowance for slow-moving inventory 25,672,594 - (25,672,594) (6,418,149)
Allowance for doubtful debts 177,034,307 - (177,034,307) (44,258,577)
Defined benefit obligation 36,432,189 - (36,432,189)  (9,108,047)
Temporary difference for IFRS 16 : Lease 2,141,131 - (2,141,131) (535,283)
Taxable/(Deductible) temporary differences  2,141,583,093 179,803,906 1,479,218,745 24,686,212
Applicable tax rate for land 3%
Applicable tax rate for other than land 25%
Deferred tax liabilities 24,686,212
At 30 June 2019

Land 1,516,172,421 - 1,516,172,421 45,485,173
Property, plant and equipment (other than land) 428,071,987 222,393,033 205,678,954 51,419,738
Allowance for slow-moving inventory 14,637,749 - (14,637,749) (3,659,437)
Allowance for doubtful debts 142,916,944 - (142,916,944) (35,729,236)
Defined benefit obligation 32,394,865 - (32,394,865)  (8,098,716)
Temporary difference for IFRS 16 : Lease 1,996,920 - (1,996,920) (499,230)
Taxable/(Deductible) temporary differences 2,136,190,886 222,393,033 1,529,904,897 48,918,292
Applicable tax rate for land 3%
Applicable tax rate for other than land 25.00%
Deferred tax liabilities 48,918,292

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Opening balance 48,621,243 58,340,262
Deferred tax (income) for the year 32(a) (24,026,714) (9,719,019)
Closing balance 24,594,529 48,621,243
Bank overdrafts

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Standard Chartered Bank 21.1 (3,558,066) 9,910,418
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC) 21.1 (1,218,466) (2,462,871)
Prime Bank Limited 21.1 53,501,787 97,110,273
BRAC Bank Limited 21.1 7,716,090 4,915,476
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 21.1 20,352,108 19,285,370

76,793,453 128,758,666
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21.1 Terms and repayment schedule

The terms and conditions of outstanding overdraft are as follows:

30 June 200 30 June 2019
Year of Loan Loan Loan Loan

In Taka Currency maturity limit outstanding limit outstanding
Standard Chartered Bank BDT 2020 10,000,000  (3,558,066) 10,000,000 9,910,418
HSBC BDT 2020 10,000,000  (1,218,466) 10,000,000 (2,462,871)
Prime Bank Limited BDT 2021 100,000,000 53,501,787 100,000,000 97,110,273
BRAC Bank Limited BDT 2021 10,000,000 7,716,090 10,000,000 4,915,476
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC BDT 2020 20,000,000 20,352,108 20,000,000 19,285,370

150,000,000 76,793,453 150,000,000 128,758,666

The Company is enjoying overdraft facilities from the banks for the purpose of meeting working capital requirements
which is to be repaid to the banks on demand.

22 Loans and borrowings

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Standard Chartered Bank 22.1 - 1,984,088
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC) 22.1 - 32,511,722
BRAC Bank Limited 22.1 39,965,341 466,614,410
The City Bank Limited 22.1 104,699,897 350,000,000
Prime Bank Limited 22.1 350,000,000 362,317,860
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 22.1 824,393,594 608,733,261
Mercantile Bank Limited 22.1 307,912,700 -

1,626,971,532 1,822,161,341
22(a) Consolidated Loans and borrowings

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Standard Chartered Bank 22.1 - 1,984,088
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC) 22.1 - 32,511,722
BRAC Bank Limited 22.1 39,965,341 466,614,410
The City Bank Limited 22.1 104,699,897 350,000,000
Prime Bank Limited 22.1 350,000,000 362,317,860
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 22.1 824,393,594 608,733,261
Mercantile Bank Limited 22.1 307,912,700 -
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited - 2,860,158

1,626,971,532

1,825,021,499

22.1 Terms and repayment schedule

The terms and conditions of combined outstanding loans are as follows:

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Year of Loan Loan Loan Loan
In Taka Note  Currency maturity limit outstanding limit outstanding
Standard Chartered Bank 2211 BDT 2021 510,000,000 - 510,000,000 1,984,088
HSBC 22.1.2 BDT 2020 200,000,000 - 300,000,000 32,511,722
BRAC Bank Limited 22.1.3 BDT 2021 750,000,000 39,965,341 750,000,000 466,614,410
The City Bank Limited 22.14 BDT 2021 800,000,000 104,699,897 800,000,000 350,000,000
Prime Bank Limited 22.15 BDT 2020 800,000,000 350,000,000 800,000,000 362,317,860
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 22.1.6 BDT 2020 900,000,000 824,393,594 800,000,000 608,733,261
Mercantile Bank Limited 22.1.7 BDT 2020 307,912,700 307,912,700 - -

4,267,912,700

1,626,971,532 3,960,000,000

1,822,161,341
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2211

2111

22112

22113

22114

22115

22116

22117

22.1.2

22121

Standard Chartered Bank

The Company is enjoying trade finance facility under general banking facilities from Standard Chartered
Bank (SCB) under the following terms and conditions against the facility offer letter dated 18 June 2017
and subsequent updates:

Letter of Credit (L/C secured)/Loan Against Trust Receipt (LATR)

Amount : Tk 510,000,000.

Purpose : To retire the documents under letters of credit issued by the Standard Chartered Bank.

Tenure : 360 days.

Payment : On maturity, each trust receipt outstanding will be adjusted by debiting Company's bank
account and quarterly interest will be charged into the same account.

Acceptance

Amount : Tk 510,000,000 (Inner limit of 22.1.1.1)

Purpose : To provide acceptance against usance or deferred/usance L/C issued. Acceptance can be
utilised for machinery L/C as well.

Tenure : 360 days.

Shipping Guarantees

Amount : Tk 200,000,000 (Inner limit of 22.1.1.1)
Purpose : For the release of imported goods
Tenure : 30 days.

Import loan

Amount : Tk 50,000,000 (Inner limit of 22.1.1.1)
Purpose : For release of imported goods
Tenure : 180 days.

Short term loan

Amount : Tk 250,000,000 (Inner limit of 22.1.1.1)
Purpose : For the purpose of working capital
Tenure : 90 days.

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

Bond & Guarantees

Amount : Tk 20,000,000 (Inner limit of 22.1.1.1)
Purpose : Issuance of guarantees on behalf of the company
Tenure : 365 days.

Securities against the facilities
Securities against the facilities mentioned under notes 21 and 22.1.1 are as follows:

- Demand promissory note and letter of continuation for Tk 520,000,000 each.
- Registered hypothecation over stock and book debts of the Company on pari-pasu basis for Tk 540,000,000.

- First charge by way of registered mortgage over the tangible fixed assets of the Company both
existing and future where Standard Chartered Bank's share being at least Tk 140,000,000.

- Corporate guarantee from Advanced Chemical Industries Limited supported by board resolution.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC)

The Company is enjoying following facilities from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited (HSBC) under the following terms and conditions against the facility offer letter dated
12 February 2020 and subsequent updates:

Combined limit/ import line/ Import cash limit

Amount : Tk 200,000,000.

Purpose : To retire sight documents by creating import loan and usance documents against
borrowers acceptance and issue shipping guarantee. To finance imported raw
materials/spares/small machinery on sight and deferred basis.

Tenure : 180 days for imports (loan) and deferred payment bills and 30 days for shipping guarantee.

Payment : On maturity of such loan.
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22122

22123

22.1.3

22131

22132

22133

22.1.34

22.14

22141

22142

Guarantee

Amount : Tk 5,000,000.

Purpose : To issues guarantees favouring various Government Bodies and utility companies etc.
required in the normal course of business.

Tenure : Open ended

Securities against the facilities

Securities against the facilities mentioned under notes 21 and 22.1.2 are as follows:

- Demand promissory note of Tk 597,549,000 with letter of revival and continuity.

- Letter of Set Off between different accounts maintained with the bank.

- Corporate guarantee to be executed by Advanced Chemical Industries Limited for Tk 510,000,000
supported by Board Resolution.

- First pari-pasu charge with other lenders over the borrower's stock of raw materials,
work-in-progress and finished goods for Tk.430,000,000 registered with the Registrar of Joint
Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC).

- First pari-pasu charge with other lenders over the borrower's book debts/receivables for Tk.
430,000,000 registered with the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies (RJSC) on pari-pasu basis
with Standard Chartered Bank, where HSBC's share is 430,000,000.

BRAC Bank Limited

The Company is enjoying following facilities from BRAC Bank Limited under the following terms and
conditions against the facility offer letter dated 08 March 2020:

Letters of Credit / Revolving Acceptance/Loan Against Trust Receipt (LATR)

Amount : Tk 300,000,000

Purpose : To retire import documents for raw materials.
Tenure : 120 - 180 days

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

Bank guarantee

Amount : Tk 50,000,000 (Inner limit of 21.1.3.1)
Purpose : To meet various contractual obligation
Tenure : 1-5 Years

Revolving loan

Amount : Tk 250,000,000

Purpose : To make payment of customs duty and VAT and meet working capital requirements
Tenure : 150 days

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

Securities against the facilities
Securities against the facilities mentioned under notes 21 and 22.1.3 are as follows:

- Registered first charge over stock and book debts of the Company for Tk. 760,000,000.
- Corporate guarantee from Advanced Chemical Industries Limited.

The City Bank Limited

'The Company is enjoying following facilities from The City Bank Limited under the following terms
and conditions against the facility offer letter dated 21 June 2020.

Letters of Credit / Revolving Acceptance/Loan Against Trust Receipt (LATR)/Short Term Loan

Amount : Tk 800,000,000
Purpose : To retire sight L/C, deferred L/C, import of raw materials and finished goods
Tenor : 90 - 360 days

Letters of Credit - Local

Amount : Tk 300,000,000 (Inner limit of 21.1.4.1)
Purpose : To procure raw material and finished goods from local source
Tenor : 90 days from date of each disbursement
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22143

22.1.5

22151

22152

22153

22154

22.16

22161

21162

21163

Securities against the facilities
Securities against the facilities mentioned under notes and are as follows:

- 1st ranking PPSSA on all floating assets including stock, book debts of ACI Formulations Limited
for BDT 800,000,000.

- Corporate guarantee from Advanced Chemical Industries Limited.

Prime Bank Limited

The Company is enjoying following facilities from Prime Bank Limited under the following terms and
conditions against the facility offer letter dated 06 March 2019.

Letters of credit (LC) / Loan Against Trust Receipt (LATR)

Amount : Tk 800,000,000

Purpose : For payment of imported raw materials / chemicals / accessories / capital machinery /
spare parts and others (import of capital machinery shall not exceed Tk 80,000,000). Also
for retirement of L/C documents or payment of accepted bills.

Tenure : 180 - 365 days

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

Time loan /7 Short term loan

Amount : Tk 500,000,000 (Inner limit of 22.1.5.1)

Purpose : To procure raw materials / chemicals / accessories and others from local sources.
Tenure : 180 days

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

Bank guarantee

Amount : Tk 40,000,000 (Inner limit of 22.1.5.1)
Purpose : To provide guarantee in favour of different authority as required by the Company.
Tenure : Open ended

Securities against the facilities
Securities against the facilities mentioned under notes and 20.1.5 are as follows:

- Available charge on floating assets with Registrar of Joint Stock Companies (RJSC) and Firms
along with NIGPA.

- Cross Corporate guarantee among Advance Chemicals Industries Limited, ACI Formulations
Limited, ACI Salt Ltd, ACI Pure Flour Ltd, Premiaflex Plastics Ltd., & ACI Motors Ltd.

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

The Company is enjoying following facilities from Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC under the following
terms and conditions against the facility offer letter dated 4 December 2019 and subsequent updates:

Letters of Credit / Loan Against Trust Receipt (LATR)

Amount : Tk 800,000,000

Purpose : To retire import documents for raw materials, packing materials, finished goods and spare parts.
Tenor : 180 days

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

Short term loan

Amount : Tk 100,000,000

Purpose : For granting payment of procurement of local raw materials and payment for duty and tax
of imported raw materials.

Tenure : 180 days

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

Securities against the facilities

Securities for the facilities mentioned under notes 21 and 22.1.6 are as follows:

- Registered first hypothecation charge over stocks and book debts on pari-pasu basis with other
lenders, CBC's share being Tk 920,000,000.
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2217

22111

22172

23

Mercantile Bank Limited

The Company is enjoying following facilities from Mercantile Bank Limited under the following terms
and conditions against the facility offer letter dated 19 September 2019 and subsequent updates:

Short term loan
Amount : Tk 307,912,700
Purpose
of imported raw materials.
Tenure : 180 days

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

Securities against the facilities

Securities for the facilities mentioned under notes and 22.1.7 are as follows:

- Corporate guarantee from ACI Limited;
- Usual charge documents;

Trade Payables

: For granting payment of procurement of local raw materials and payment for duty and tax

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Related party-Premiaflex Plastics Limited 10,558,933 4,135,063
Other than related parties 108,025,080 84,915,891

118,584,013 89,050,954

23(a) Consolidated trade payables

24

241

24.2

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Related party-Premiaflex Plastics Limited 10,558,933 4,135,063
Other than related parties 109,403,140 93,289,407

119,962,073 97,424,470

Other payables

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Creditors for expenses 24.1 273,198,932 193,888,613
Advance from customer 4,198,952 -
Interest payable 20,531,902 16,288,914
Security money payable 16,245,968 11,765,968
Unpaid dividend 12,580,680 11,810,167
Withholding tax and VAT 6,877,023 4,706,251
Workers' profit participation fund 24.2 6,608,741 9,553,187

340,242,198 248,013,100

This includes accrued selling, manufacturing and other accrued expenses.

Workers' profit participation fund

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Opening balance 9,553,187 8,594,760
Addition during the year 6,608,741 9,553,187
Interest accrued during the year 363,659 200,544
Paid during the year (9,916,846) (8,795,304)

6,608,741 9,553,187

Page 90 | Annual Report 2019-2020



24(a) Consolidated other payables

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Creditors for expenses 24.1 273,858,984 195,338,739
Advance from customer 4,198,952 -
Interest payable 20,531,902 16,288,914
Security money payable 16,245,968 11,765,968
Unpaid dividend 12,580,680 11,810,167
Withholding tax and VAT 7,049,059 4,887,019
Provision for workers' profit participation fund 24.2 6,608,741 9,553,187

341,074,286 249,643,994

25 Inter-company payables

In Taka

30 June 2020

30 June 2019

ACI Limited

864,104,485

1,146,287,405

864,104,485

1,146,287,405

This arises due to common cost sharing and working capital financing with ACI Limited.

26 Current tax liabilities/ (assets)

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Opening balance 332,092,799 268,942,996
Provision made during the year 57,345,975 63,149,803

389,438,774 332,092,799

Advance income tax paid 26.1

(713,332,854)

(560,861,570)

(323,894,080)

(228,768,771)

26.1 Advance income tax

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Opening balance 560,861,570 403,491,786
Additions 152,471,284 157,369,784

713,332,854 560,861,570

26(a) Consolidated current tax liabilities/ (assets)

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Opening balance 333,652,313 270,340,004
Provision made during the year 57,505,684 63,312,309

391,157,997 333,652,313

Advance income tax paid 26.1(a)

(714,915,707)

(562,377,539)

(323,757,710)

(228,725,226)

26.1(a) Consolidated advance income tax

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Opening balance 562,377,539 404,463,787
Additions 152,538,168 157,913,752

714,915,707 562,377,539

27 Revenue

For the year ended

30 June 2020

For the year ended
30 June 2019

In Taka Note
Agrochemical products 27.1
Consumer products 27.2

2,615,685,217
806,761,257

2,762,064,532
1,263,221,358

3,422,446,474

4,025,285,890
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In view of innumerable items of sales and diversified quantities, it is not practicable to disclose the quantities

against each items of sale.

27.1 Agrochemical products

For the year ended

For the year ended

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Local 2,614,531,306 2,739,550,275
Export 1,153,911 22,514,257

2,615,685,217

2,762,064,532

27.2 Consumer products

For the year ended

For the year ended

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Cail 27.2.1 11,200,300 134,212,762
Aerosol 27.2.1 396,117,145 531,931,582
Vanish 27.2.1 16,890,266 46,829,793
Paint 382,553,546 550,247,221

806,761,257 1,263,221,358

27.2.1 On 24 April 2015 ACI Limited entered into agreements with S. C. Johnson & Son, Inc. (a corporation

incorporated under the laws of the state of Wisconsin, USA) whereby S. C. Johnson & Son, Inc. has purchased
the brands of these products on mutually beneficial terms. As per contract, ACl Formulations Limited produces
these products for S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc., which are marketed by ACI Limited through its own channel.
ACI Formulations Limited will continue to be the manufacturer of these products for a period of 5 years from
24 April 2015. The agreement was renewed on 1st May 2019 and will be in effect up to 30 June 2021.

The Mosquito Coil industry has been dominated by branded coils with more than 70% of market share since
long. Due to huge presence of unauthorized and illegal coils, the market share of the branded coils shrank
significantly during the year under reporting. As a result, S. C. Johnson & Son, Inc. , the brand owner of call,
placed no order for coil production. Consequently, the revenue of Mosquito Coil business has reduced
overwhelmingly. However, S. C. Johnson has developed three high efficacy molecules of Mosquito Coil to
regain its market shares. The Company strongly believes that the new molecules will help to enhance the

demand in the market in coming days.

27(a) Consolidated revenue

For the year ended
30 June 2020

For the year ended
30 June 2019

In Taka Note
Agrochemical products 27.1(a)
Consumer products 27.2(a)

2,615,685,217
808,358,349

2,762,064,532
1,290,305,679

3,424,043,566

4,052,370,211

27.1(a) Agrochemical products

For the year ended

For the year ended

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Local 2,614,531,306 2,739,550,275
Export 1,153,911 22,514,257

2,615,685,217

2,762,064,532

27.2(a) Consumer products

For the year ended

For the year ended

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Coil 11,200,300 134,212,762
Aerosol 396,117,145 531,931,582
Vanish 16,890,266 46,829,793
Paint 382,553,546 550,247,221
Herbal cosmetics 1,597,092 27,084,321

808,358,349 1,290,305,679
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30 Manufacturing, administrative, selling and distribution expenses

For the year
For the year ended 30 June 2020 ended
30 June 2019

Manufacturing Administrative Distribution Selling

Total Total

In Taka expenses expenses expenses expenses

Salary and wages 115,618,861 126,781,149 44,259,044 237,001,915 523,660,969 526,970,217
Traveling and conveyance 104,916 2,155,911 28,821,188 70,222,514 101,304,529 98,951,364
Rent and rates 380,834 4,367,812 11,125,094 12,942,238 28,815,978 25,685,194
Charge on right-of-use rent

agreements - - 4,450,891 4,802,521 9,253,412 8,373,717
Repair and maintenance 11,444,346 5,210,048 1,938,437 161,103 18,753,934 23,665,073
Fuel and power 11,716,079 3,350,477 2,210,482 4,843,481 22,120,519 28,382,447
Postage, telephone and fax 827,778 81,768 1,405,642 5,009,873 7,325,061 7,805,264
Printing and stationery 452,851 1,612,583 4,556,604 2,465,640 9,087,678 7,559,330
Promotional expenses 114,475 1,475,000 - 17,024,066 18,613,541 70,841,883
Customer & field demonstration - - - 22,597,356 22,597,356 27,223,031
Sample expenses - - - 2,299,430 2,299,430 3,111,205
Annual conference - - - 433,816 433,816 833,345
Publicity & advertisement - 20,000 - 1,032,807 1,052,807 2,557,051
Entertainment 663,980 1,191,067 2,240,648 2,976,137 7,071,832 12,544,493
Vehicle maintenance 649,946 2,406,532 3,322,832 3,628,753 10,008,063 17,319,557
Doubtful debts - - - 35,026,106 35,026,106 32,776,937
Truck and handling 1,476,575 - 5,953,348 2,050 7,431,973 10,709,048
Legal and professional charge - 119,444 - 9,494,203 9,613,647 39,071,491
Audit fees - 693,000 - - 693,000 630,000
Insurance 6,255,088 990 - 1,204,129 7,460,207 5,992,390
Directors' fees - 15,000 - - 15,000 9,750
Bank charges - 1,674,748 - 686,724 2,361,472 3,748,176
Sundry expenses 96,605 - - - 96,605 224,357
Product development expenses - - - 1,320,980 1,320,980 1,418,134
Training expenses 7,050 - - 1,940,400 1,947,450 857,177
Depreciation 47,475,705 2,295,465 41,250 15,858,583 65,671,003 67,843,104
Lab chemical and apparatus 344,494 - - - 344,494 541,046
Meeting expenses - 540,000 - 2,649,442 3,189,442 2,546,591

197,629,583 153,990,994 110,325,460 455,624,267 917,570,304 1,028,191,372

Recovery of expenses for toll

manufacturing service charges: (10,809,780) - - - (10,809,780)  (11,036,045)

186,819,803 153,990,994 110,325,460 455,624,267 906,760,524 1,017,155,327
(A) Manufacturing expenses 186,819,803 218,199,485
(B) Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 719,940,721 798,955,841

906,760,524 1,017,155,326

30(a) Consolidated administrative, selling and distribution expenses

For the For the
year ended year ended
In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Administrative expenses 154,567,898 155,520,841
Distribution expenses 110,325,460 102,432,769
Selling expenses 455,624,266 542,400,724
720,517,624 800,354,334
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31

32

32.1

Finance costs, net

For the For the
year ended year ended
In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Interest expenses
Bank loan 120,098,592 142,544,969
Financing cost lease liabilities 1,747,827 2,249,713
Inter-company 100,985,011 89,509,934
222,831,430 234,304,616
Interest income
Bank 2,803,732 3,160,659
Inter-company 2,312,553 4,133,373
5,116,285 7,294,032
217,715,145 227,010,584
31(a) Consolidated finance costs, net
For the For the
year ended year ended
In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Interest expenses
Bank loan 119,722,410 142,856,545
Financing cost lease liabilities 1,747,827 2,249,713
Inter-company 100,985,011 89,509,934
222,455,248 234,616,192
Interest income
Bank 2,803,732 3,160,659
Inter-company 1,568,396 4,133,373
4,372,128 7,294,032
218,083,120 227,322,160
Income tax expense
For the For the
year ended year ended
In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Current tax expense
Charged during the year 26 57,345,975 63,149,803
57,345,975 63,149,803
Deferred tax (income)
Change in deferred tax liabilities 20 (24,232,080) (10,405,872)
(24,232,080) (10,405,872)
Tax expense 33,113,895 52,743,931
Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
For the For the
year ended year ended
In % 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Regular tax rate of the Company 25.00% 25.00%
Effect of exemption -0.01% -0.09%
Effect of disallowance & other 1.38% 4.35%
26.37% 29.26%
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32(a) Consolidated income tax expense

33

33.1

33.2

33.3

For the For the
year ended year ended
In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Current tax expense
Charged during the year 26(a) 57,505,684 63,312,309
57,505,684 63,312,309
Deferred tax (income)
Change in deferred tax liabilities 20(a) (24,026,714) (9,719,019)
(24,026,714) (9,719,019)
Tax expense 33,478,970 53,593,290

EPS, NAV per Share and NOCFPS:

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding is as follows:

For the For the
year ended year ended
In Taka/Number 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number) 45,000,000 45,000,000
Profit/(loss) attributable to the owners of the Company (Taka) 92,452,191 127,515,514
Earning per share (Taka) 2.05 2.83

Net asset value (NAV) per share

Net assets attributable to equity holders of the Company

2,406,741,159

2,471,788,968

Net asset value (NAV) per share (Taka)

53.48

54.93

Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities

668,384,052

(270,224,885)

Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS)

14.85

(6.00)

33(a) Consolidated EPS, NAV per Share and NOCFPS:

33.1(a) Basic earnings per share

33.2(a) Net asset value (NAV) per share

33.3(a) Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities
Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS)

The calculation of basic earnings per share based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding is as follows:

For the For the
year ended year ended
In Taka/Number 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number) 45,000,000 45,000,000
Profit/(loss) attributable to the owners of the Group (Taka) 92,733,589 129,382,678
Earning per share (Taka) 2.06 2.88

Net assets attributable to equity holders of the Group

2,401,979,094

2,466,745,505

Net asset value (NAV) per share (Taka)

53.38

54.82

653,504,574

(264,521,424)

14.52

(5.88)
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33.4

34

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted EPS was required to be calculated for the year ended 30 June 2020 since there was no
scope for dilution of shares.

Financial risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

* Credit risk (see 34(ii));
« Liquidity risk (see 34(iii)); and
e Market risk (see 34(iv)).

Risk management framework

The Company's management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain
a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Company's exposure to credit risk primarily relates to
trade receivables and balance with banks including short and long term deposits.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base,
including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of financial asset in the
statement of financial position.

(a) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Trade receivables 13(a) 1,752,279,842 1,861,263,656
Other receivables 14 40,619,138 41,673,512
Inter-company receivables 15(a) 17,862,732 3,658,384
Deposits 16(a) 17,496,446 29,797,266
Bank balances 17(a) 158,133,271 176,188,974

1,986,391,429 2,112,581,792

At reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by
geographic regions was as follows:

Carrying amount

In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Bangladesh 1,755,128,429 1,863,557,107
India 37,770,551 39,380,061

1,792,898,980 1,902,937,168
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(b) Ageing of trade receivables

The aging of trade receivables at reporting date was as follows:

In Taka

Carrying amount

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due 1 - 90 days

Past due 91 - 120 days

Past due 121 - 180 days

Past due 181 - 365 days

Past due 366 - 730 days

Past due 731 plus days

1,061,972,382 1,126,256,614

200,038,547 271,802,571
110,669,658 134,653,453
66,390,108 98,138,610
120,274,575 69,338,906
66,509,573 38,583,637
126,424,999 122,489,865

1,752,279,842 1,861,263,656

Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still
collectable in full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of the customer credit
risk, including underlying customers' credit rating if they are applicable.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of receivables during the year was as follows:

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Opening balance 13(a) 142,916,944 111,063,899
Impairment loss recognised 35,026,106 32,776,937
Amounts written off/ write in (908,743) (923,892)
Closing balance 177,034,307 142,916,944
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(iv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest
rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

a) Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the
currencies in which purchases are denominated and the respective functional currency of the
Company. The functional currency of the Company is Bangladesh Taka (Taka/TK/BDT). The foreign
currency in which these transactions are denominated is US Dollar (USD).

Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as at balance sheet
date was as follows.

In USD 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Cash at bank 9,618 241,198
Loans and borrowings (9,155,665) (3,851,956)

(9,146,047) (3,610,758)

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year:

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Average Year-end Average Year-end
In Taka rate spot rate rate spot rate
usb 84.73 84.95 84.13 84.50

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of foreign currency against functional currency at 30
June would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign
currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignore any impact of forecast
sales and purchase.

Equity, net of tax

Profit/(loss) increase/(decrease)
Effect in Taka Strengthening Weakening  Strengthening Weakening
30 June 2020
USD (5% movement) 38,744,943 (38,744,943) 38,744,943  (38,744,943)
30 June 2019
USD (5% movement) 15,187,749 (15,187,749) 15,187,749 (15,187,749)

Annual Report 2019-2020 | Page 101



b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowings. The Company
has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest rate risk as at the

reporting date.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as at balance sheet

date is as follows.

Nominal Amount

In Taka Note 30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

Investment in FDR 10(a) 35,742,593 35,719,438

Financial liabilities

Lease liability 9(a) (10,999,131) (17,354,334)

Bank overdrafts 21 (76,793,453) (128,758,666)

Loans and borrowings 22(a) (849,197,778) (1,499,531,220)
(901,247,769) (1,609,924,782)

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets

Loans to Advance Chemical Industries Limited 15(a) 17,862,732 3,658,384

Financial liabilities

Offshore loan 22(a) (777,773,754) (325,490,279)

Loans from Advance Chemical Industries Limited 25 (864,104,485) (1,146,287,405)

(1,624,015,507)

(1,468,119,300)
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35

35.1

35.2

36

Commitments and contingencies

Commitments

On the statement of financial position date, the Company is enjoying unfunded credit facilities from

the following banks:

In Taka

30 June 2020

30 June 2019

a) Revenue expenditure (Letters of credit)

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 72,951,972 155,416,161
The City Bank Limited 101,168,875 847,312
BRAC Bank Limited - 35,288,690
Prime Bank Limited 32,153,660 -
206,274,507 191,552,163
b) Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted for 1,133,781 18,468,390
1,133,781 18,468,390
Contingent liabilities
In Taka 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Bank guarantee
HSBC - 1,581,679
The City Bank Limited 2,085,034 -
Pubali Bank Limited 29,602,380 20,300,000
BRAC Bank 3,340,767 24,562,358
35,028,181 46,444,037
Performance guarantee
Standard Chartered Bank 191,544 15,585,398
191,544 15,585,398
35,219,725 62,029,435

Production capacity

The production status (business wise) for the year ended 30 June 2020 are as follows:

Business Segment Capacity Unit Actual % of utilisation
Crop Care and Public Health 25,800 M Ton 10,373 40.21
Mosquito Coil 1,098,000 Carton - -
Aerosol 11,400,000 Can 4,059,066 35.61
Vanish 12,000,000 Can 154,633 1.29
Paint 3,000 M Ton 1,035 34.50

The production status (business wise) for the year ended 30 June 2019 were as follows:

Business Segment Capacity Unit Actual % of utilisation
Crop Care and Public Health 25,800 M Ton 10,905 42.27
Mosquito Coil 1,098,000 Carton 128,237 11.68
Aerosol 11,400,000 Can 5,632,517 49.41
Vanish 12,000,000 Can 1,191,494 9.93
Paint 3,000 M Ton 1,696 56.55
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38 Other disclosures

38.1 Number of employees

At 30 June 2020, number of regular employees receiving remuneration of Tk. 36,000 or above per
annum was 1,113 (30 June 2019: 1,361).

38.2 Subsequent events

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28 October 2020 have recommended cash dividend at
20% per share of Taka 10 each aggregating to Taka 90,000,000 for the year ended 30 June 2020
subject to approval of the shareholders' in the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 24
December 2020. As the dividend exceeds 30%, it fulfils the requirement of section 16(g) of ITO 1984
as well.

38.3 Impact of COVID-19

During the financial year, on 11 March 2020, World Health Organization (WHO) declared a global
pandemic due to Corona Virus related respiratory disease commonly called as COVID-19. To contain
the spread of this disease, along with many other countries of the world, Government of Bangladesh
has also taken a number of measures such as declaration of general holiday, enforcement of lock
down, social distancing etc. As a result of these measures, all businesses and economic activities of
the country are adversely affected which have also impacted the Group's business as well. However,
Business operation of the Group is not materially impacted except for Paint which suffered a
de-growth around 50% in the 4th Quarter due to COVID-19. Management of the Group has assessed
the going concern issue along with possibility of impairment of assets and found no uncertainty
regarding these for the upcoming 12 months due to COVID-19.

39 Name of auditors of the group companies

Name of the company Status of the company Name of auditors
Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd Subsidiary Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
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ACIl Formulations Limited

Report of the Directors and Audited
Financial Statements of the Subsidiary Company
for the year ended 30 June 2020
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Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Limited
Directors' Report to the Shareholders
For the year ended on 30 June 2020

Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd. is a private company limited by shares, incorporated in 2003 with the
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies, Dhaka, Bangladesh and governed by the Companies Act 1994. ACI
Formulations Limited is the major shareholder of the Company having 98% shares in the Company.

The Company engaged in manufacturing and marketing of herbal products to make available the benefits of
Neem and other herbs to the consumers.

Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd. was not in manufacturing operations during the reporting period. However,
the Subsidiary continues to generate revenue through royalty fees based on the agreement with ACI Limited
effective from 01 July 2019 for a tenure of 5 years; the latter currently being engaged in the manufacturing
of products under the Neem Original brand name. The brand of the Company, Neem Original is growing with
the rapid growth of the herbal market. Neem Original consists of herbal soap, hand wash and face wash. In
fiscal year 2019-20, the growth of Neem Original was 23%. Currently it has market share of 14.24% in
herbal market and also working forward to make this brand as the most trusted natural product among the
consumers.

The Company follows fiscal year (July-June) as its financial year. The operating results as per audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on 30 June 2020 are as follows:

Key Financial Results Value (BDT)
Revenue 1,597,091
Operating profit 1,020,187
Profit before tax 652,212
Profit after tax 287,137

On behalf of the Board

Shusmita Anis Syed Alamgir
Director Director

Dhaka: October 01, 2020
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R. K. TOWER (Level-10)

SHIRAZ KHAN BASAK & CO. (312, Sorargaon Road). Dhata- 1205

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Tel :88-02-9635139, 88-02-9673597
) ] ) Mobile :01552-638228,01711520770
(An associate firm of D. N. Gupta & Associates) 01922-117370, 01757-941837

E-mail : shirazkhanbasak@yahoo.com
Website : www.shirazkhanbasak.bd.com

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Shareholders of

NEEM LABORATORIES (Pvt) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Neem Laboratories (Pvt) Ltd (“the Company”), which
comprise statement of financial position as at 30"June, 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the company as at 30"June, 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994 and
other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together
with ethical requirement that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
(consolidated) financial statements.
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R. K. TOWER (Level-10)

86, Bir Uttam C.R. Datta Road
SHIRAZ KHAN BASAK & CO° (312, lSl;)nargzlolrl Road). ]ghaia-log(l)S

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Tel :88-02-9635139, 88-02-9673597
) ) ) Mobile :01552-638228,01711520770
(An associate firm of D. N. Gupta & Associates) 01922-117370, 01757-941837

E-mail : shirazkhanbasak@yahoo.com
Website : www.shirazkhanbasak.bd.com

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are in adequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, we also report the following:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of those books;

c) The statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income dealt with by the report are
in agreement with the books of accounts and returns;

d) The expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the Company’s business.

~
Place: Dhaka Ramendra Na sak, FCA
Date: October 01, 2020 Partner
Shiraz khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants.
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NEEM LABORATORIES (Pvt.) LIMITED

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2020

Particulars 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Taka Taka

Assets

Property, plant and equipment:

At cost 4,960,191 4,960,191

Accumulated depreciation (3,582,610) (3,212,591)
Total non-current assets 1,377,581 1,747,600
Deferred tax asset 91,684 297,050

Inventories - 16,278,040

Trade receivables 1,005,174 4,874,683

Inter-company receivable 17,862,732 3,658,384

Advances, deposits and prepayments 2,279,467 3,289,921

Cash and cash equivalents 692,486 946,193
Total current assets 21,839,859 29,047,221
Total assets 23,309,124 31,091,871

Equity and liabilities

Equity
Share capital 500,000 500,000
Retained earnings (6,583,200) (6,870,337)
Total equity (6,083,200) (6,370,337)
Liability
Loans and borrowings - 2,860,158
Trade payables 1,378,062 8,373,517
Other payables 832,088 1,630,894
Inter-company liabilities 25,462,953 23,038,127
Current tax liability 1,719,221 1,559,512
Total current liabilities 29,392,324 37,462,208
Total liabilities 29,392,324 37,462,208
Total equity and liabilities 23,309,124 31,091,871

As per our separate report of even date annexed

Aoeiee e G

Director Director Company Secretary

Rl

Ramendra Nath Basak,FCA

) Partner
Place: Dhaka Shiraz khan Basak & Co.
Date: October 01, 2020 Chartered Accountants.

An associate firm of D.N. Gupta Associates
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NEEM LABORATORIES (PVT.) LIMITED

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Particulars 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Taka Taka
Revenue 1,597,091 27,084,321
Cost of sales - (22,619,624)
Gross profit 1,597,091 4,464,697
Administration, selling and distribution expenses (576,904) (1,398,492)
1,020,187 3,066,205
Other income - -
Result from operating activities 1,020,187 3,066,205
Finance cost (367,975) (311,577)
Profit / (loss) before income tax 652,212 2,754,628

Income tax expenses :

Current tax expenses (159,709) (162,506)
Deferred tax income (205,366) (686,851)
(365,075) (849,357)

Net profit / (loss) after tax 287,137 1,905,271

As per our separate report of even date annexed.

Director Director Company Secretary

.
Place: Dhaka

Date: October 01, 2020 Ramendra Nath Basak,FCA
Partner
Shiraz khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants.

An associate firm of D.N. Gupta Associates
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NEEM LABORATORIES (PVT.) LIMITED

Statement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Share Retained
capital earnings Total
Particulars Taka Taka Taka
Balance on 30 June 2018 500,000 (8,775,608) (8,275,608)
Net profit for the year - 1,905,271 1,905,271
Other comprehensive income for the year - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,905,271 1,905,271
Balance at 30 June 2019 500,000 (6,870,337) (6,370,337)
Net profit for the year - 287,137 287,137
Other comprehensive income for the year - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 287,137 287,137
Balance at 30 June 2020 500,000 (6,583,200) (6,083,200)

As per our separate report of even date annexed.

e

Director

Place: Dhaka
Date: October 01, 2020
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Company Secretary

Rl

Ramendra Nath Basak,FCA

Partner

Shiraz khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants.

An associate firm of D.N. Gupta Associates



NEEM LABORATORIES (PVT.) LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Particulars 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Taka Taka
A) Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts/(paid) from /(to) customers 5,466,603 32,622,202
Cash receipts from other income - -
5,466,603 32,622,202
Cash paid for:
Purchase of inventory (4,885,687) (17,375,902)
Operating expenses (1,005,691) (276,896)
Advances, deposits and prepayments 1,077,339 (245,078)
(4,814,039) (17,897,876)
Cash generated from operations 652,564 14,724,326
Financing cost (367,975) (311,577)
Income tax (66,885) (543,968)
(434,860) (855,545)
Net cash used in operating activities 217,704 13,868,781
B) Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - -
Net cash from (used in) investing activities - -
C) Cash flows from financing activities
Inter-company debts (paid)/received 2,388,747 (8,165,320)
Short term loan received (2,860,158) (4,822,716)
Net cash flows from financing activities (471,411) (12,988,036)
D) Net cash flow from all activities (A+B+C) (253,707) 880,745
E) Cash and cash equivalent at 01 July 2019 946,193 65,448
F) Cash and cash equivalent at 30 June 2020 (D+E) 692,486 946,193
Closing balance represents:
Cash in hand and at bank 692,486 946,193
692,486 946,193

As per our separate report of even date annexed.

Director

Place: Dhaka
Date: October 01, 2020

Company Secretary

Rl

Ramendra Nath Basak,FCA
Partner
Shiraz khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants.

An associate firm of D.N. Gupta Associates
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ACl FORMULATIONS LIMITED

Registered Office
ACI Centre, 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208

PROXY FORM

1/We

of

being a Member of ACI Formulations Limited, hereby appoint

of

whose signature is appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf
at the 24th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 24 December 2020 at

10:00 am and/or at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hands this day of 2020.

Signature on
Tk.20
Revenue Stamp

(Signature of the Proxy) (Signature of the Shareholder)

Registered Folio/ BO ID No.

No. of Shares held

Date

Note : A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf. The Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited at the
Share Office of the Company at 9 Motijheel C/A, Dhaka 1000, not later than 48 hours before
the time fixed for the meeting.
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ACI

<

ACl FORMULATIONS LIMITED
Registered Office
ACI Centre, 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I hereby record my Attendance at the 24th Annual General Meeting being held on Thursday, 24 December

2020 at 10:00 am through digital platform.

Name of member/proxy

Registered Folio/ BO ID No

No. of Shares held

Signature of Shareholder(s)
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ACI

ACI Formulations Limited
ACI Centre, 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka 1208
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